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Lieut. Miles MacInnes was a native of the Isle of Skye, Scotland. He emigrated to North Carolina 
in 1774, fought for the British during the American Revolution, was taken prisoner at the Battle 
of Moore's Creek Bridge and eventually was awarded compensation from the British, including 
200 acres at Meaghers Grant on the Musquodoboit River in Halifax County, Nova Scotia in 1784. 
Miles married Christiana MacDonald in Halifax in 1789, daughter of Capt. Angus MacDonald, a 
native of Benbecula who had also served in the same regiment in North Carolina. This is a record 
of their descendants. 
 
Additions/corrections are always welcome!  
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First Generation  
-------------------------------------------------- 

 
1. Miles MacInnes. Born ca 1754 in Camucross, Sleat, Isle of Skye, Scotland. Miles died in Meaghers Grant, NS, in 
1818; he was 64. Residence: North Carolina (1774), Halifax (1784). 
 
 
Lieut. Miles MacInnes, by Flo Dickey, Tucson, AZ. Some of Flo’s text came from “Highlanders from Skye, in 
North Carolina and in Nova Scotia: 1771-1818”, By Robert Archibald Logan, Scottish Genealogist, 1966, Vol. 
12(4): 92-108. 
  
Miles MacInnes departed from the Isle of Skye, Scotland to North Carolina in 1774. It has been said that he was 
born at Camucross, Sleat, Isle of Skye. It is also possible that he was born at North Uist.  It is very possible that he 
was a son or close relative of John MacInnes (MacGinnis) who was the boatman for Flora MacDonald and Bonnie 
Prince Charlie, but I have not found any documentation to prove any of the above as yet. 
 
Miles arrived in North Carolina in 1774 with enough money to purchase livestock and operate a plantation of 1800 
acres in Anson County, North Carolina.  He grew apples, peaches, wheat, corn, rye, and oats.  He raised cattle, 
horses, sheep, and hogs. The nearest villages were Cross Creek and Campbelltown (which were merged about 1778 
under the name of Campbell-town, which was then changed to Fayetteville in 1783).   Miles probably purchased 
goods from this village.  It was a thriving trade center with mills, pharmacy, courthouse, hotel, and general store. 
 
Miles was appointed a lieutenant by his regiment leader Colonel Hector McNeil. He served under Captain Allen 
MacDonald, who was commander of the Anson Battalion that was in the battle of Moore's Creek Bridge.  Miles 
future father-in-law, Captain Angus MacDonald and Angus's son, Angus, also served in this battalion. 
 
When the North Carolina governor called up the Highland settlers of his Province, he expected that they would 
march about one hundred miles to the sea-coast where British ships would arrive to transport them to Nova Scotia 
and they would be given training and arms in order to defend their country against rebels.  But this was not the case.  
Before the Highlanders reached the coast of North Carolina they met a smaller and much better armed body of 
Yankee rebels.  Unfortunately for these Highlanders, less than half were armed and those classed as "armed" had 
nothing other than swords.  The battle took place at Moore's Creek Bridge February 27, 1776.  In the brief battle 
Highlanders were outmaneuvered by the highly skilled Americans.  A few were killed and more than 800 taken 
prisoners.  Included among the prisoners were Allen MacDonald of Kingsburgh and his two sons, our Capt. Angus 
MacDonald, and our Lieut. Miles MacInnes.  Since there were so many prisoners and not nearly enough Yankees to 
guard them, the younger men were released.  They were told to go home and think about joining the Yankee cause.  
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Some of the Highland prisoners escaped.   
 
Miles MacInnes was among those captured.  He was carried to the Cross Creek jail where he was "loaded with irons 
and suffered many cruelties."  When word came of the approach of a large British force, the rebels removed his 
chains and he made his escape to the British Army.   
 
Miles MacInnes continued to serve as a lieutenant in the British forces under Colonel Ray.   He served on active 
duty in the Carolinas, Georgia, and Florida, until 1783.  For the last few months of his military service, he was in St. 
Augustine, Florida.   
 
Miles’ property was confiscated.  After the war he went to London to present his claims for losses suffered in North 
Carolina arriving December 9, 1783.  He had excellent references and letters of recommendation from high officials, 
but things moved slowly.  In late summer 1784, (nearly a year later) he was awarded about 45% of his losses and 
given permission to emigrate to Nova Scotia, where he had friends and connections.  His old unit and the 84th Royal 
Highland Emigrant Regiment had been sent there a few years earlier and mustered out at Windsor, Nova Scotia at 
the end of the war.  The soldiers were given land in Nova Scotia provided they stayed. 
 
After the deportation of the French Acadians, the British offered free land and vacant farms in Nova Scotia to 
anyone willing to settle.  Many New Englanders, including our Dickeys and other groups from Scotland, the British 
Isles, and German states along the Rhine came to settle.  Two hundred Scots settled at Pictou, Nova Scotia in 1773 
from the ship Hector. They were the first of a vast wave of Highlanders who crossed the Atlantic seeking a better 
life.  These Highlanders settled mainly on Cape Breton and Prince Edward Island. 
 
In 1775, when the Revolution broke out in America, it seemed likely that Nova Scotia would join the other thirteen 
colonies. This did not happen.  It remained a Crown Colony and thus Nova Scotia became one of the main receiving 
points for the flood of Loyalists who fled the new United States after the war.  In all, about 30,000 people settled in 
Nova Scotia mainly along the Atlantic Coast.  The arrival of so many people, some of them very influential, 
transformed Nova Scotia into a busy Crown Colony. 
 
Miles MacInnes was a single man when he arrived in Halifax, Nova Scotia in the autumn of 1784.  He was awarded 
200 pounds sterling for his property losses in North Carolina, he received "half-pay" for one year, and a pension of 
20 pounds per annum from 1783 to 1790, when the amount was reduced to 16 pounds sterling per annum.  The 
Pension Rolls show that he was paid until 1818 and from that date the pension was paid to his widow, Christiana 
MacDonald MacInnes. 
 
Miles was promised 200 acres on the Musquodoboit River as soon as it could be surveyed, but he had to wait until 
December 1785 before that was done. Miles and two other loyalists named Daniel Blue and Andrew Murphy, were 
the first three white settlers on that part of the Musquodoboit River.  This area is located above the rapids (falls) that 
are located about two and a half miles from the mouth of the river.   
 
A settlement had been started in 1784 on the headwaters of the Musquodoboit River by men from Truro and Onslow 
by way of the Stewiacke River and that settlement extended downstream. But Miles and his companions were the 
first white settlers to come into the Musquodoboit Valley from the Atlantic Coast and extend the settlement 
northward. 
 
This settlement on the Musquodoboit River was made up of Scottish North Carolinians. It was a nucleus of ten men, 
four women, and two children who settled there as early as May of 1784.  Most of the men had served in the Militia 
and were from Cumberland and Anson County, North Carolina.  Miles MacInnes was one of these Musquodoboit 
settlers. 
 
The grant of land which Miles was to settle was stony, uncultivated, and full of underbrush, but fertile.  When they 
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first went in, they had to cut roads around three waterfalls.  Miles and his party missed the distribution of food and 
tools which the provincial government made to the loyalists and during the first year they had to eat their seed 
potatoes.  By the time they got more from Halifax the following year the season was to far advanced for a successful 
crop.  Miles said the only communication with Halifax was by water and that was hazardous most of the year. 
 

 
 
Nova Scotia Crown Land Information Management Centre 
https://novascotia.ca/natr/land/indexmaps/075.pdf 
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Even though Miles built a log house on this land, he found the land unsuitable for farming and tried to obtain 
another grant of land farther up the river. Unfortunately, all the good land had been already granted to others, 
particularly a large area granted to Martin Meagher. Meagher's Grant was a grant of land comprising about 9000 
acres near Halifax.  For the purpose of colonization, this land was granted to "Bachelor Meagher" a Major in the 
British Army in 1765. It is documented that Ranald MacDonald, one of the first settlers came from the United 
States.  Ranald was born on the Isle of Skye, a loyalist and believed to be the son of Flora MacDonald. Archibald 
Crawford, another early settler, married Mary MacDonald, daughter of Angus MacDonald and sister of Christiana 
who married Miles MacInnes.  Another early settler was John Dunbrack, a Scotchman, who married Catherine 
MacDougall and her brother, Alexander MacDougall married Catherine MacDonald, another sister of Christiana 
MacDonald.   
 
About 1790, Miles purchased some land a few miles up stream from where he first settled on a farm known as the 
Parker Place (owned in 1980 by Fulton Dunbrack) and a few years later moved to a farm where he resided for the 
remainder of his life.  Miles’ son, Malcolm remained in the home and raised a family of sixteen. It was eventually 
sold to Wellington Kent, then to a Dr. Wilson, and in 1980 to Robert Misiner.  It is on Lay Lake Road and just west 
of where the Lower Meagher's Grant school was located in 1987.  His neighbors included Angus MacDonald, 
Archibald Crawford, Jacob Bayer (Byer), a son of George Bayer, Sr. formerly of Frankfurt on-the-Main, Germany, 
James Cruickshank, and John Dunbrack to name a few.   
 
The first time Miles MacInnes saw his wife was when he and some other officers were on a trip to McNabb's Island 
and unexpectedly came on the three MacDonald girls while bathing. 
 
On September 19, 1789, Miles MacInnes married Christiana in St. Paul's Church in Halifax, Nova Scotia.  Two of 
Christiana's sisters were married to neighbors of Miles; her sister Mary became the wife of Archibald Crawford and 
her sister Alexandrina, better known as "Lexy," became the wife of Jacob Bayer.  A third sister Catherine married 
Alexander MacDougall. 
 
In 1810, Miles MacInnes signed as a witness to the Will of Alexander Mackenzie, Lake Egmont, Halifax County, 
N.S.  The other witness was to the Will were Ranald MacDonald and James MacDonald. 
 
Miles MacInnes was instrumental in getting a road from Meagher's Grant to Halifax.  He became a Justice of the 
Peace and was a prominent citizen of the district.  In 1814, he and Archibald Crawford applied for Crown Land on 
West River St. Mary's, where they hoped to raise cattle.  Each was to receive a grant of 500 acres, but before the 
land could be granted Miles MacInnes died and the land reverted to the government. 
 
Miles died in 1818 and Christiana died in 1853 at the age of 84. Miles MacInnes apparently died without a Will.  
For no stated reason, the estate was not settled until about 1834, when part of his land at Meagher's Grant was 
conveyed by a deed to his son Malcolm.  The deed was signed by the other heirs. Other nearby land was conveyed 
to his son Angus.  The names of the female heirs were: 
 
 Ann McDougal (no mention of name of husband)  
 Jennet Logan, wife of Robert A. Logan.  
 Mary Cruickshanks, wife of James Cruickshanks.  
 Alexandrina Dickey, wife of Samuel Dickey.  
 Christiana Cruickshanks, wife of Alexander Cruickshanks.  
 Elisa Ann McInnes,   
 (a daughter born 1816)   
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Miles MacInnes and Christiana MacDonald MacInnes had 9 children who produced at least 60 grandchildren all 
who lived to be adults and had large families.  Their descendants are now widely scattered over Canada and the 
United States and have included men and women who became lawyers, doctors, educators, bankers, engineers, 
explorers, publishers, military officers, nurses and writers. 
 
**** In all documents signed by Miles MacInnes the surname is spelled MacInnes.  In deeds signed by his heirs in 
1834 the name appears as MacInness.  In a map of Halifax County showing names of householders about 1860 the 
name appears as McGinnes and as McGinness.  In some books, such as "Historical and Genealogical Record of the 
First Settlers of Colchester County" by Thomas Miller, the name appears as McInnis.  
 
****  In a story about the early settlers of Meagher's Grant by A.B. Lay, he  stated that when ever you hear the name 
MacInnes you will find carpenters.  It has been said of Malcolm MacInnes that he could build a mill with a square, 
saw and  broad axe."   
 
 
 
From the Department of Archives and History, State of North Carolina 
 
McInnes, Miles (A.0. Class 13, Bundle 122) 
To the Honorable Commissioners appointed by Act of Parliament for 
inquiring into the Losses and Services of the American Loyalist - - - 
  
The Memorial of Miles McInnes Lieut. of the North Carolina Militia- 
Humbly Showeth; 
That your Memorialist was appointed a Lieut. In the Regiment of Militia under 
Colonel Hector McNeil in North Carolina in the year 1780, did duty as such 
till being out on a scouting party nigh the Cheraws was, with several others, 
taken prisoner and carried to Cross Creek jail, where he was loaded with 
Irons, & suffered many cruelties; 
That the Rebels getting Intelligence that the British Troops were advanced 
nigh Cross Creek, took off his Irons & your Memorialist by the Help of some 
friends made his Escape to the British Army, where he acted Lieutenant as 
formerly under Colonel Ray, and proceeded with him to Wilmington, after the 
Evacuation of which Place he went with the British Troops to Charlestown, and 
from thence to St. Augustine, where he was continued in the same Office, till 
Peace was concluded; 
That your Memorialist received at Charles Town a Twelve months Half pay and 
no more by Order of General Leslie for the Time of his Loyalty; 
That your Memorialist by his absence was deprived of all his Effects, both 
personal and real in America as p Schedule hereunto annexed & no Means or 
Calling being left him of Support was necessitated to come over into England, 
where he arrived the 8th Inst. And resides now in London without Friends or 
Money in great want of the Necessaries of Life, therefore prays that his Case 
may be taken into your Consideration, in Order that he may be enabled, under 
your Report, to receive such Aid or Relief as his Losses and Services may be 
deemed to deserve & Your Memorialist will ever pray. 
 
London No. 25 Turn Mill Street the 16th of Dec.r.--1783  
______________________________________________________________________ 
(Another Page) 
 
Endorsed    
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 No. Carolina 
 
Lieut. Miles McInnes 
 Attended 18th Decr.1783 
 
Schedule annexed to memorial of Lieut. Miles McInnes: English Records, A.0. 
Class 13, Bundle 122 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
The Schedule to which the proceeding Memorial refers: 
                      
           £ Sterling 
250 Acres of land, of which 23 Acres were cleared &            
well fenced, with a good Peach & Apple Orchard 
situated in the County of Anson, North Carolina,           
 
A new built dwelling House, 3 Outhouses & a Brew House     12/6   
260 Bushels of Indian Corn, wheat, Rye, Oats & c  
taken by the Rebels           2/-                                             
30 Head of black Cattle            30/-                                          
119 Hogs             6/-    
24 Sheep            10/- 
4  Horses             8/ 
Houshold Furniture             
Plantation Impliments 
Guns and a broad Sword                  60/- 
3  Suits of Cloaths each with 7 shirts socks &c      8/-Ea.                                           
A Silver Watch                                                               
Beef, Pork, Butter &c            
                                                                             
 Evidence (on a slip of paper) 
 
I do certify that the Bearer Miles McInnes was possessed of Landed property & 
stock accordingly in Anson County North Carolina which he lost for his 
loyalty.  Given under my hand No.1 Nottingham Street the 17th December 1783 
                                            James Cotton  Lt.Col. 
                                            North Carolina Militia. 
 
 
I do hereby certify that the Bearer Miles McInnes was possessed of Landed 
property and stock accordingly in the County of Anson in North Carolina & 
that he lost the same by Loyalty. Given under my hand the 18th December,1783. 

            Donald McDonald     Lt.Col. ( )  
                                Alexr. Mc Leod      Major ( ) 
                      18th December 1783 
 
Went from Scotland in the year 1774 to settle in America - he had heard talk 
of the Rebellion before he left  Scotland - he bought a Plantation in North 
Carolina for £100 currency - upon his arrival he had 114 Guineas when he 
landed - when he bought it there were 14 acres cleared - he cleared 29 more -
he thinks with his Buildings & Improvements it was worth £200 currency - he 
had cattle, Horses & Hogs with the corn at his plantation worth £200 
Currency. 
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He was at Moores Bridge under Col. McDonald but made his Escape & remained at 
his own plantation untill 1780, much alarmed - the Oath was often tendered to 
him but he always refused it, he served 
from 1780 to the Evacuation of Charlestown as Lieutenant  
of Militia - this is certified by Col. McNeal, Capt Alex. McRae,  
Lieut. Col. Hamilton & Brigr. Gen. Mc Arthur & to property 
from Col. McDonald, Col. Cotton & major Mc Leod - is a single 
man & has no means of Subsistance. 
 
 Decision                            £20 p. Annum    
 
This Man appears to have be well attached to the Cause of Great Britain & to 
have lost his property in Consequence thereof - he is in great want of 
support & having produced the necessary Certificates both as to Loyalty & 
Property from Col. McNeal, Brigr.Gen. McArthur and other Officers We think 
ourselves justified in recommending an allowance of £20 p. Annum from 
Michaelnas last 1783. 
___________________________________________________ 
(Another Sheet )      McInnes Miles  A.0.12. Vol. 109 
 
No. of Certificate             454 
 
Name of Claimant              McInnes  Miles 
 
Province                   No. Caro. 
 
Claim for loss of Property         424: 9 
 
Sum originally allowed                150    
 
Sum as allowed on revision         200 
 
Total sum payable by act of Parl.     200 
 
Sum already received            60 
 
Balance after such receipt    140 
 
Deducted on acct of Pension           2 
 
Final Balance             138 -    
 
 
 Halifax  ss. 
 
Miles McInnes late of Anson County, North Carolina, Farmer, but now of 
(Musquodoboit) Musquadobbit in the County of Halifax, maketh oath and saith, 
that after the conclusion of the late American War, the Deponent put in his 
claim for losses, as a Loyal Suffering Subject, from Carolina aforesaid, 
Before the Honorable the Commissioners for American Claims, Lincoln's Inn, 
London and was thereupon allowed as a Temporary Subsistence, the sum of 
Twenty pounds sterling per annum, That in the fall of the year one thousand 
seven hundred and eighty four this deponent arrived at Halifax, Nova Scotia, 
and there received from His Excellency Governor Parr, a grant of land Situate 
on the East side of the River, at Musquadobbit aforesaid, containing Two 
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hundred of acres of rude and uncultivated land, but did not get any Tools, or 
Utensils therewith.  That the Deponent has at much expense and with much 
Care, pains and Labour, Built a Logg House, on part of said land, made some 
Improvement thereon, by planting potatoes, garden Seeds etc. That the 
Deponent resides on his said land and intends so to do, and that he has not, 
nor has any one in trust for him, any other property in Nova Scotia, but the 
land and Improvements aforesaid.  And this Deponent further saith, That until 
the Deponent and a few more Individuals, settled on the said River at 
Musquadobbit, there were no Inhabitants on the said River, and the same Lands 
were never before settled by white people, which made and still makes, the 
settling of said Lands, attended with very much difficulty, Labour and 
Expense, there being no road to Halifax from thence, the only communication 
being by water, which during the Winter, is either rendered impracticable, or 
attended with great risque, so that the Cultivation of said Lands, under 
these, and many more inconveniences, such as the length of the Winter, the 
difficulty of clearing the land, which tho: fertile, when once cleared, yet 
in its Natural state is a mere Wilderness, full of underbrush, and 
exceedingly stony, which requires great exertions of Industry, and much Cost 
to remove, And this Deponent also saith That if the said Allowance of Twenty 
pounds per annum, shall be discontinued to the Deponent, it will very much 
distress him in his present State and Situation. 
 
                   Miles McInnes 
 
Sworn before me this forth Day of May 1787 
Geo. Wm. Sherlock J.P. 
 
A Representation of the present state & Circumstances of Miles McInnes. 
 
That on my arrival in this Country, I made application to his Excellency 
Governor Parr who was pleased to Order me 200 acres of Land on the river 
Musquidoboit in 1784; but could not have it laid out to me until the year 
following, by reason of me, not being able to do any thing of Consequence for 
myself, and consequently at more expene than my circumstances would well 
allow:  As soon as possible after my Land was Surveyed I built a house, and 
entered upon Clearing the Land for Cultivation: That a Mr. Blue a hlaf Pay 
Officer, another Family and myself were the first Settlers on the above said 
River which is not Inhabited to the distance, by computation of 45 or 50 
Miles being navigable for boats after having passed 3 falls which lies within 
about 2 1/2  miles of the Tide, and round which falls we had (on our 
first settling there) to cut out Roads, and to encounter many other 
difficulties, which from the nature of the Country & Inclemency of the 
Climate is easier Conceived than for me to describe, there being no 
Communication with Halifax but by sea, Passages often Attended with a 
considerable loss of time, every Species of Provisions & Cloathing dear, the 
necessary Seeds of all kinds at a very high rate & sometimes very difficult 
to procure: That particularly last season from the extreme inclemency of the 
preceding winter, Seed potatoes, which is a principal dependence of new 
settlers here; was extravagently dear & which from want of an easy 
Communication with Halifax I could not procure untill the Season was too far 
Advanced which was a Considerable detriment to me.  Thee Coroborating 
inconveniences however Trivial they may appear, has realy Exhausted all my 
little stock insomuch that if the Commissrs. Will not be pleased to continue 
me my yearly Allowance, or I receive a dividend Shortly in despight of my 
Industry I shall be unable to prosecute my present Plan of Subsistence. 
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Nova Scotia     
Halifax SS 
     
Personally appeared before me, Daniel Wood Junr, Esquire, one of His 
Majestey's Justice of the peace for the County of Halifax- Miles McInnes, who 
being duly Sworn Deposseth and Saith, that the several matters set forth in 
the within representation is true in every particular.    
 
Miles McInnes 
Sworn this 13th day of May AD1788 before me 
D.  Wood jun J.P.       
ENDORSED July 12, 1788  L. Wolfle Esq. Transmitting a Memorial from Lt. Miles 
McInnes for further leave of Absence. 
 
21 July 1788   Leave granted 
 
 
 
On 19 Sep 1789 when Miles was 35, he married Christiana MacDonald, daughter of Angus  (VIII) MacDonald1 
(-1802) & Catherine MacLeod (1731-1813), in Halifax, NS. Born in 1769 in Isle of Skye, Scotland. Christiana 
died in Meaghers Grant, NS, in 1853; she was 84. Residence: North Carolina (1773), Halifax (1778). 
 
Christiana was the daughter of Angus MacDonald the VIII of Griminish, North Uist and Catherine MacLeod, the 
daughter of the Rev. Donald MacLeod of Skye and Ann MacLean of Boreray.  Christiana was born on the Isle of 
Skye in 1769.  She was about five years old when she went with her family to North Carolina in 1773.   
   
After the American Revolution the family settled in Nova Scotia and on September 19, 1789 Christiana married 
Lieut. Miles MacInnes in Halifax, Nova Scotia. Christiana's father, Captain Angus R. MacDonald the VIII of 
Griminish was a descendant of Hugh (Uisduin) Alexander, First of Sleat and his third wife, the daughter of 
MacLeod of Harris.  Christiana's mother, Catherine MacLeod was born about 1731 in Skye and died 1813 in Nova 
Scotia. Christiana's lineage goes back to Somerled through John, First Lord of the Isles and both of his wives, Amy 
MacRuari and Priness Margaret Ross Stewart. 
 
The first time Miles MacInnes saw his wife was when he and some other officers were on a trip to McNabb's Island 
and unexpectedly came on the three MacDonald girls while bathing. Christiana and Miles were married in Halifax, 
Nova Scotia on September 19, 1789. Miles MacInnes died in 1818 and Christiana died in 1853 at the age of 84.  
From the Nova Scotian, a newspaper clipping said: 
 
 "At Musquodoboit, aged 84 years, Mrs. MacInnes, widow of Mr. MacInnes, an officer of the British Navy. She was 
born on the Isle of Skye and arrived in America before the war of independence. After the Revolution she came to 
Nova Scotia and married and has left behind her a numerous family of children, grandchildren and great grand 
children...." 
 
Miles MacInnes and Christiana MacDonald MacInnes had 9 children who produced at least 60 grandchildren all 
whom lived to be adults and had large families.  Their descendants are now widely scattered over Canada and the 
United States and have included men and women who became lawyers, doctors, educators, bankers, engineers, 
explorers, publishers, military officers, nurses and writers. 
 

 
1 See Appendix 1, page 61, for the biography and family of Angus MacDonald and Catherine MacLeod. 
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All of the ancestry of Christiana MacDonald, which includes Kings of both Scotland and England and many Barons 
and Knights, has come from Flo Dickey, the Burkes and Scots Peerages, and the Clan website genealogies for Clan 
MacDonald, Clan MacLean, Clan MacLeod and Clan MacFarlane.2 
 
They had the following children: 
 2 i. Ann/Nancy (24 Dec 1790-5 Jun 1876) 
 3 ii. Jannet (8 Dec 1792-17 Oct 1859) 
 4 iii. Mary (25 Mar 1795-12 Oct 1889) 
 5 iv. Alexanderina (8 Aug 1798-1841) 
 6 v. Ranald (27 Jan 1801-20 Oct 1884) 
  vi. Angus. Born on 21 Jan 1804 in Meaghers Grant, Halifax Co., NS. Angus died in 

Dartmouth, NS, on 5 May 1869; he was 65. Buried in Camp Hill Cemetery, Halifax. 
 
   He was married twice, first to Susan Arichibald, the daughter of David Archibald and 

Elizabeth Kent. She died and left no children. Angus married Miss Reynolds. Little is 
known of any descendants from this marriage (Flo Dickey). 

 
   McInnis Angus d. Wed. at Dartmouth, in 66th yr., native of Musquodoboit and for many 

years resident of Dartmouth (PW Sat. 8 May 1869). 
   s/o Malcolm McInnes, Musquodobouit. Married. (NSHVS deaths). 
 
   At Camp Hill Cemetery, “In Memory of Angus McInnes who died May 5 1869 age 66 

years.” Also at Camp Hill Cemetery, “Erected in memory of Mary E., wife of the late 
Angus McInnes, wo died Jun 6, 1871, age 43 years. 

 
   Mrs. Mary Eleanor McInnes, d. 6 Jun 1871, NSHVS deaths, no other details. 
    
   McInnis Mary E. died 6th inst. in 44th year, relict of late Angus McInnis, 5th d/o 

Wellwood Reynolds of Musquodoboit. (PW Sat 10 Jun 1871). 
 
   Angus married Susan Archibald, daughter of Capt. David Archibald (2 Apr 1775-) & 

Elizabeth Kent (1788-1885). Born on 6 Sep 1809 in Musquodoboit, NS. 
 7 vii. Malcolm (20 Oct 1806-27 Oct 1881) 
 8 viii. Christiana (Aug 1810-) 
 9 ix. Eliza Ann (8 May 1816-23 Apr 1878) 
 
 
 
 
 

Second Generation  
-------------------------------------------------- 

Family of Miles MacInnes (1) & Christiana MacDonald 
 
 

2. Ann/Nancy MacInnes (Miles1). Born on 24 Dec 1790. Died 5 Jun 1876. Buried Greenlawn Cemetery, Wayzata, 

 
2 For an ancestry report of Christiana (MacDonald) MacInnes through 28 generations, see 
http://gofffamilyhistory.ca/ChristianaMacInnesMusquodoboitAncestry.pdf 
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MN. 
 
On 18 Nov 1812 when Ann/Nancy was 21, she first married John MacDougal, son of Alexander MacDougal 
(1765-30 Aug 1834) & Catherine MacDonald (ca 1773-). Born in 1790. John died in 1818; he was 28. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Alexander. 
 
   Died at sea. 
 10 ii. Christiana 
  iii. Catherine. Catherine died in 1875. 
 
   Ca 1840 Catherine first married George Boland. 
 
   Catherine second married David Dickey, son of David Dickey (1794-23 May 1872) & 

Catherine MacDougal (1803-aft 1881). Born in 1834. David died in 1916; he was 82. 
Residence: Glenmore, Musquodoboit, NS. 

 
   1871 census Middle Musquodoboit Dickey David 38 Harriet 22 Robert 3 Dugal 1. 
 
 
Ann/Nancy second married Ranald Bayer, son of Jacob Bayer and Alexandrina (Lexy) MacDonald (d/o Angus, see 
Appendix). This marriage was from Flo Dickey notes. 
 
1875 census Hennepin, MN Dickey Bayer 32 b. NS Barbary 28 b. NS Anna 9 b. NS Idda 7 b. NS L.M. 0 b. Minn 
Bayer Anna 84 b. NS (Bayer Dickey would be her nephew). 
 
They had one child: 

i. Miles. Born 1829. Residence: Minnestoa (1855); Flo Dickey information. 
   1857 US Census Hennepin Co., MN Township 117 Range 23 Miles Byerz 28 Lea Dickey 

25 Charles Cruickshank 35, James Dillman 27, all b. Nova Scotia. 
 

   Note: Miles Bayer, s/o Jacob Bayer and Alexandrina (Lexy) MacDonald (See Appendix, 
p. 65), born on 31 Oct 1819. Miles died in Greene, Tennessee, on 13 Apr 1904; he was 
84. Buried in Rheatown, Greene, Tennessee. On 11 Apr 1869 when Miles was 49, he first 
married Sarah Osborn in Hennepin Co., MN. Born on 11 May 1824 in Guilford, North 
Carolina. Sarah died in Greene, Tennessee, on 4 Mar 1885; she was 60. On 11 Aug 1886 
when Miles was 66, he second married Mary Robertson in Greene, Tennessee. Born in 
1843 in Greene, Tennessee. Mary died in Greene, Tennessee, on 22 Jun 1922; she was 
79. 
 

 
3. Jannet MacInnes (Miles1). Born on 8 Dec 1792. Jannet died in Middle Musquodoboit, NS, on 17 Oct 1859; she 
was 66. Buried in Hillside Cemetery, Middle Musquodoboit. 
 
On 28 Nov 1815 when Jannet was 22, she married Robert Archibald Logan, son of William Logan (23 Nov 1764-
Oct 1796) & Janet Archibald (29 Oct 1770-). Born on 8 Dec 1794. Robert Archibald died in Truro, Colchester Co., 
NS, on 22 Aug 1871; he was 76. Buried in Hillside Cemetery, Musquodoboit. 
 
They had the following children: 
 11 i. Miles McInnis (6 Sep 1816-1886) 
  ii. Edward R. (Died as Infant). Born in 1818. Edward R. died in 1819; he was 1. 
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 12 iii. Mary MacInnes (13 Jan 1820-14 Apr 1896) 
 13 iv. Hannah Christiana (26 May 1822-2 Dec 1907) 
 14 v. William (24 May 1824-1906) 
 15 vi. Samuel Braden (26 Mar 1826-15 May 1900) 
 16 vii. Margaret Ann (28 Oct 1828-1904) 
 17 viii. Angus McInnes (17 Dec 1830-3 Oct 1917) 
 18 ix. Robert Archibald (13 Jul 1833-1890) 
 19 x. Malcolm McInnis (24 Jul 1836-) 
 
4. Mary MacInnes (Miles1). Born on 25 Mar 1795 in Meagher's Grant, N.S. Mary died on 12 Oct 1889; she was 94. 
 
Mary and James and their eight children moved to Iowa. (Flo Dickey) 
 
Mary married James Cruickshank, son of John Cruickshank. Born on 19 Apr 1801. James died in Linn, Iowa, on 
24 May 1869; he was 68. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Ann. Born on 18 Dec 1826 in Halifax NS. Ann died on 20 Jun 1901; she was 74. Buried 

in Oak Hill Cemetery, Central City, Linn, Iowa. 
 
   In May 1856 when Ann was 29, she married John Blanchard Cutler in Linn, Iowa. 

Born on 15 Nov 1813 in Glover, Orleands, Vermont. John Blanchard died in Linn, Iowa, 
on 5 Jul 1907; he was 93. 

  ii. Christianna. Born in 1829. 
 20 iii. John Allen (26 Feb 1831-15 Nov 1924) 
 21 iv. Runald (May 1833-11 Sep 1903) 
 22 v. William (1837-28 Mar 1882) 
 23 vi. Miles McInnes (1839-15 Jan 1916) 
  vii. Margaret. Born on 24 Jan 1842. 
 24 viii. James Angus (3 May 1843-12 Mar 1941) 
 
5. Alexanderina MacInnes (Miles1). Born on 8 Aug 1798 in Lower Meaghers Grant, NS. Alexanderina died in 
Glenmore, Musquodoboit, NS, in 1841; she was 42. Buried in Meagher's Grant, NS. 
 
Ca 1823 when Alexanderina was 24, she married Samuel Dickey3, son of David Dickey (29 Apr 1763-Nov 1852) 
& Ruth Weatherby (ca 1766-1816). Born in 1797 in Musquodoboit, NS. Samuel died in Glenmore, Musquodoboit, 
NS., on 13 Apr 1872; he was 75. Buried in Meagher's Grant, N.S. 
 
On 25 Feb 1845 when Samuel Dickey was 48, he second married Hannah Swinburn Kent, daughter of James 
Kent (1785-28 Mar 1866) & Christiana Guild (-7 Aug 1864), in Upper Musquodoboit, NS. Born on 17 Jun 1814 
in Musquodoboit, NS. Hannah Swinburn died in Glenmore, Musquodoboit, NS, on 17 Apr 1892; she was 77. Buried 
in Meaghers Grant, NS. 
 
Samuel Dickey was born in 1797 in Musquodoboit, Nova Scotia. He inherited his forefathers Herculean strength, 
having been described as equal to that of two men.  He was also described as a peaceful and loving gentleman.  He 

 
3 For a descendancy record of the family of Samuel Dickey and Alexandrina MacInnes and his 
second wife Hannah Swinburn Kent, please see 
http://www.gofffamilyhistory.ca/DickeyDickieFamilyColchesterNovaScotia.pdf 
Their families are not carried through in this report. 
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married about 1823 to Alexandrina MacInnes of Lower Meaghers Grant, Nova Scotia.  She was the daughter of 
Lieutant Miles MacInnes, and Christiana MacDonald.  They had 3 sons and 3 daughters. Alexandrina MacInnes 
Dickey died in 1841 at age 43, complications of childbirth. Samuel Dickey remarried 3 years later at the age of 48, 
to Hannah Swinburn Kent (1814-1892) on Feb. 25, 1845.  They had 3 sons and 2 daughters.  Hannah's brother, 
Wellington Kent married Eliza Ann MacInnes, Hannah's other sister was Mary Kent.  Samuel Dickey died April 13, 
1872 and is buried next to Alexandrina MacInnes Dickey and to the left of Hannah at Meaghers Grant, 
Musquodoboit, Nova Scotia. The 11 children of Samuel Dickey are named in Jennie Reid’s Musquodoboit Pioneers, 
updated by Byron K. Jennings, 2004. 
 
A large portrait of Samuel Dickey hung in the home of Harry Dickey, grandson, but its whereabouts is now 
unknown. 
 
1871 census of Wyse’s Corner, Samuel Dickey, 74, farmer, Hannah, 55, James, 25, Sidney, 23, Charles, 18, Annie, 
15. Religion listed as Wesleyan Methodist. 
 
Samuel Dickey had a total of 65 grandchildren. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Janet. Born in 1824 in Glenmore, NS. Janet died in Wayzata, Minnesota, on 3 Feb 1896; 

she was 72. Residence: Minnesota (Bet 1881-1885). Janet married James Shaw, son of 
Alexander Shaw (1 Dec 1774-9 Jan 1867) & Isabel Mason (20 May 1785-). Born on 15 
Jun 1813 in Musquodoboit, NS. James died in Wyse’s Corner, Hfx. Co., NS, on 29 Jul 
1880; he was 67. Buried in Meaghers Grant, NS. 

  ii. Miles MacInnes. Born on 22 Sep 1825 in Glenmore, Musquodoboit, NS. Miles 
MacInnes died in Wayzata, Minnesota, on 13 Jul 1917; he was 91. Buried in Old 
Wayzata Cemetery. Residence: MA (1854); MN (1864). On 14 Nov 1847 when Miles 
MacInnes was 22, he married Eliza Ann Dunbrack, daughter of Alexander Dunbrack 
(1 Sep 1786-12 Jan 1887) & Isabelle "Belle" Cruickshank (18 Aug 1788-10 Nov 
1889). Born on 24 Feb 1828 in Musquodoboit, NS. Eliza Ann died in Wayzata, 
Minnesota, on 8 Oct 1914; she was 86. 

  iii. Hannah Ann. Born on 3 Aug 1826 in Glenmore, Musquodoboit, NS. Hannah Ann died 
in Goffs, Halifax Co., Nova Scotia, on 26 Nov 1900; she was 74. Buried in Meaghers 
Grant, Halifax Co., NS. Religion: Presbyterian. On 5 May 1853 when Hannah Ann was 
26, she married William Goff, son of Thomas Goff (14 Jun 1796-23 May 1868) & 
Eleanor Holland (1800-16 Jun 1865), in Dartmouth, Nova Scotia. Born on 22 Jul 1823 
in Bedford, Nova Scotia. William died in Goffs, Halifax Co., Nova Scotia, on 11 Feb 
1885; he was 61. Buried in St. Johns Anglican Church, Lower Sackville, NS. Occupation: 
Innkeeper, Carpenter, Farmer, Justice Of The Peace. Residence: Bedford, Sackville, 
Goffs. Religion: Anglican. 

  iv. Eleazer (Lee) Curtis. Born on 7 Mar 1833 in Glenmore, Musquodoboit, NS. Eleazer 
(Lee) Curtis died in Long Lake, Hennepin Co., Minnesota, on 9 Apr 1901; he was 68. 
Buried in Long Lake, Hennepin Co., MN. Residence: Minnesota (1852). On 22 May 
1861 when Eleazer (Lee) Curtis was 28, he married Alexanderina Dunbrack, daughter 
of Alexander Dunbrack (1 Sep 1786-12 Jan 1887) & Isabelle "Belle" Cruickshank 
(18 Aug 1788-10 Nov 1889), in Lower Musquodoboit, NS. Born in 1842 in Meaghers 
Grant, NS. Alexanderina died in Long Lake, Minnesota, on 13 Apr 1893; she was 51. 

  v. Christiana. Born on 10 Mar 1837 in Meaghers Grant, NS. Christiana died in Seattle, 
WA, on 2 Mar 1924; she was 86. Buried in Mount Pleasant Cemetery, Seattle, WA. On 5 
Nov 1863 when Christiana was 26, she married James A. Simpson in Halifax, N.S. Born 
in Jun 1835 in New Brunswick. Residence: New Brunswick; Halifax (1863, 1871); 
Malden MA (1872, 1880); Seattle, WA (1889); Seabeck, WA (1900, 1910). 

  vi. Ranald "Byers". Born on 20 Dec 1841 in Glenmore, NS. Ranald "Byers" died in 
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Minnesota on 5 Apr 1913; he was 71. Buried in Greenlawn Cemetery, Wayzata, MN. 
Residence: Long Lake, Hennepin, MN (1869); Wayzata (1885). On 3 Nov 1864 when 
Ranald "Byers" was 22, he married Barbara Jane Stevens. Born on 18 May 1847 in 
Elderbank, Hfx. Co., NS. Barbara Jane died in Wayzata, MN, on 20 Jan 1912; she was 
64. Buried in Greenlawn Cemetery, Wayzata, MN. Eldest daughter of James Stevens, 
Halifax Road, Musquodoboit. 

 
6. Ranald MacInnes (Miles1). Born on 27 Jan 1801. Occupation: Millwright, Farmer. Died 20 Oct 1884, Sheet 
Harbour. 
 
Ranald MacInnes, the fifth child and first son of Miles and Christiana, was born Jan. 27, 1801. Ranald was a mill-
wright and farmer.  He married Miss Elliphalley MacHeffey of Gays River. They had several children, including a 
daughter named  Alexandrina and a son who died at age 19. (Flo Dickey) Note, however, that Ellaphalley Currie 
was the wife of Ranald and Carrie McHeffey was the wife of son Ronald. 
 
Presbyterian Witness Sat. 3 Jun 1848. McInnes Theresa d. Fri. 19th inst., drowned in a well, at Meaghers Grant, 
Musquodoboit, d/o Ronald McInnes. 
 
1871 census Sheet Harbour McInnis Ronald 70 Ella 59 Alfred 18 William 10. 
1881 census Sheet Harbour McInnis Ronald 80 Ella 68 Ronald 31 Alfred 28 Sarah 31 James Rupert 18/12. 
 
McInnis Ronald died 20 Oct at Sheet Harbour, in 84th year (PW Sat 1 Nov 1884). 
 
Note: there was another MacInnes family in Sheet Harbour, but I am not sure if they were related. 
 
1891 census Sheet Harbour McInnis John J. 29 Mary 28 Minnie 8 John 6 Anna 4 Catherine 1. 
1891 census Sheet Harbour McInnis John 40 Maggie 27 John Charles 3 Michael J. 1. 
1891 census Sheet Harbour McInnis Daniel 34 Hannah 25 Christina 1 Helena 7/12 
 
McInnis, Casse, d/o John & Mary McInnis, East River Sheet Harbour, Halifax Co. md. 28 May 1908 Hiram 
Sylvester LANTZ of Halifax, by Rev. J. R. MacDonald at the manse, Sheet Harbour (PW Sat 6 Jun 1908). 
 
John McInnis b. 19 Oct 1885 Sheet Harbour s/o John J. McInnis, b. Sheet Harbour and Mary Thorpe b. 15 Aug 1863 
Sheet Harbour died 23 Mar 1940 Sheet Harbour, Blanch McInnis, wife. Bur. St. Peters Roman Catholic. Michael 
McInnis, Sheet Harbour, brother. (NSHVS) 
 
John and Mary (Thorpe) McInnis had i. Mary Elizabeth b. 16 Dec 1882 Sheet Harbour, ii. John b. 19 Oct 1884 
Sheet Harbour, iii. Alexander Mathew b. 29 Apr 1891 Sheet Harbour, iv. Maggie Flora 31 May 1894 Sheet Harbour. 
Familysearch has John J. of the Antigonish family, but their data on this family is a bit scattered. 
 
30 Mar 1911 Sheet Harbour Passage, John MacInnes 25 b. Sheet Harbour s/o John, lumberman, and Mary md. Eva 
Harnish 18 b. Sheet Harbour Passage d/o Amos and Susanna. 
 
John Alex McInnes, b. 18 Dec 1916 Sheet Harbour, s/o John P. McInnes and Eva Blanche Harnish (NSHVS) 
 
John Joseph MacInnes, b. 17 Feb 1942 Sheet Harbour, s/o John Alexander MacInnes and Margaret Crowell, died 25 
Oct 1969 Sheet Harbour, accidental drowning in Marsh Falls Lake, lost while on hunting trip. Burial St. James 
Church, Sheet Harbour, Diane MacInnes, Halifax, wife. 
 
Murdock Leroy MacInnes 26 b. Sheet Harbour, s/o John MacInnes, b. Sheet Harbour, and Eva Blanche Harnish, 
md. Lydia Muriel Bezanson 17, d/o Oscar Roy Bezanson, b. Sheet Harbour, and Annie Elizabeth Pye. 14 Dec 1939, 
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Port Dufferin, Halifax Co. 
 
MacINNIS, Lydia Muriel "Dolly" - 85, passed away peacefully on April 13, 2007, in Northwood Manor, Halifax. 
Born in Sheet Harbour, Halifax Co., on April 9, 1922, she was a daughter of the late Roy and Annie (Pye) Bezanson. 
Dolly was a member of St. Andrews Anglican Church, Watt Section. She is survived by daughters, Linda (John C.) 
MacInnis, Sheet Harbour; Joan (Richard) Lawrence, Lakeview; sister, Helen Spears, Sheet Harbour; grandsons, 
Darrell MacInnis, Fort McMurray, Alta; Carmen MacInnis (Janet LeLievre), Porters Lake; Richard (Linda) 
MacInnis, Lake Echo; Wayne (Bev) MacInnis, Sheet Harbour; great-grandchildren, Natasha, Tyler, Mallory, Colby, 
and Ryan. She was predeceased by husband, Murdock; brothers, Eric and Harold, Cyril in infancy; sister, Trixie 
Murphy. Burial in St. Andrew's Church Cemetery, Watt Section, Nova Scotia. 
 
Murdock Leroy MacInnes b. Dec 23 1912 died 16 Aug 1962 Sheet Harbour. 
 
 
 
Ranald married Ellaphallia Currie. Born in 1813 in Windsor, Hants Co., NS. 
 
As named on death certificate of sons James, Ronald and Alfred. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. James Baker. Born in 1835. James Baker died on 5 Nov 1864; he was 29. Occupation: 

Ship’s carpenter. 
 
   Accidental death - crushed in a mill. Son of Ranald McInnes, millwright, and Eliphal 

maiden name Currie. Ranald McInnes, father, informant (NSHVS). 
 31 ii. Ronald (23 Dec 1849-19 Dec 1942) 
 32 iii. Alfred (8 Jul 1852-19 Feb 1930) 
 
7. Malcolm MacInnes (Miles1). Born on 20 Oct 1806 in Meaghers Grant, Hfx. Co., NS. Malcolm died in Meaghers 
Grant, Hfx. Co., NS, on 27 Oct 1881; he was 75. Occupation: Carpenter. 
 
Malcolm was married three times and had a total of 19 children.  Malcolm was well-kniown as a carpenter.  
Malcolm's first wife was Isabel Rhind, by whom he had one daughter and three sons.  His second wife was Jean or 
Jane Shaw, by whom he had one son and two daughters. His third wife was Miss Esther Dunbrack.  Malcolm and 
Esther had four sons and eight daughters. 
 
1881 census Wyses Corner McInnes Malcom 74 Ester 52 William 29 Lenora 25 Rawling 22 Ellen 20 Eliza 18 
Emma 16 Isabella 14 Maggie 11 Adrinda 2 
 
McInnis Malcolm d. 27 Oct at Meagher’s Grant, aged 76, leaving wife, 19 ch., 45 grch. (PW Sat 5 Nov 1881). 
 
Malcolm first married Isabel Rhind. 
 
They had the following children: 
 33 i. Miles (25 Dec 1832-8 Jan 1898) 
  ii. Jannet. Born on 10 Mar 1835. Jannet died on 28 Nov 1854; she was 19. She was never 

married. 
 34 iii. John (28 Feb 1837-10 Oct 1907) 
 35 iv. Malcolm (9 Apr 1839-2 Sep 1915) 
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Malcolm second married Jane (Jean) Shaw, daughter of Alexander Shaw (1 Dec 1774-9 Jan 1867) & Isabel 
Mason (20 May 1785-). Born on 10 Apr 1821. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Alexander. Born on 23 Nov 1841 in Meaghers Grant, Hfx. Co., NS. Alexander died in 

Musquodoboit Harbour, NS, on 4 Dec 1918; he was 77. Buried in Riverside Cemetery, 
Musquodoboit Harbour. Residence: Musquodoboit Harbour (1901). 

 
   1891 and 1901 census, Musquodoboit Harbour. 
 
   Alexander married Margaret Shinner. Born on 5 Dec 1850 in Harbour Grace, 

Newfoundland. Margaret died in Musquodoboit Harbour, NS, in 1929; she was 78. 
 
   Born in Harbour Grace, Newfoundland, daughter of Thomas and Susanna (Lee-Whiting) 

Shinner. Came to Nova Scotia before 1870. Married John Smith in 1871 in Sheet 
Harbour. After his death in 1876, she married Alexander MacInnes, and they lived in 
Musquodoboit Harbour for the rest of their lives. (findagrave) 

 36 ii. Barbara Ann (10 Sep 1843-) 
  iii. Isabella Jane. Born on 19 Nov 1846. 
 
   There is a Jane Isabella McInnis 26 d/o Malcolm (wheelwright) and Jane md. 22 Dec 

1871 Fall River James Andrew Gaston 27 b. Cole Harbour s/o John (farmer) and  Mary 
A. 

   McInnis Jane Isabell md. 22nd inst. (d/o Malcolm McInnis of meagher’s Grant); James 
A. Gaston of Dartmouth, by Rev. John L. Bell (PW Sat 25 Dec 1875). 

 
   James A. Gaston 76 widower res Dartmouth died 1 Aug 1924 bur. Camp Hill. 
 
 
Malcolm third married Esther Dunbrack, daughter of John Dunbrack (1797-) & Jane Hawthorne Olgilvie. Born 
in 1830. 
 
They had the following children: 
 37 i. Angus (7 Dec 1848-29 Oct 1905) 
 38 ii. Agnes Lena (30 Oct 1850-22 Apr 1931) 
  iii. William James. Born on 17 Jun 1852. 
 
   Daughter Mabel MacInnes married Percy Brigham (Jennie Reid) 
 
   Mabel Lillian McInnes b. 8 Nov 1884 Charlestown Boston d/o William MacInnes and 

Mary Kerr md. Percy Aubrey Brigham (b. 14 Sep 1884 Lexington, Mass., d. 15 Oct 
1972) 1 Sep 1909, Somerville, Mass. 

 
   William James married Jane Grant. Born in 1855. Jane died in 1881; she was 26. 
  iv. Adrinda (Died as Child). Born on 28 Feb 1856. 
 39 v. Leonora Janet (27 Feb 1857-16 Dec 1925) 
  vi. George Rawlings. Born on 17 Feb 1858. George Rawlings died in 1888; he was 29. 
 40 vii. Mary Elen (12 Aug 1860-1 Mar 1890) 
 41 viii. Eliza Ann (31 Aug 1862-16 Mar 1931) 
 42 ix. Emma (4 Dec 1864-) 
  x. Isabel. Born on 17 Sep 1866 in Meaghers Grant, Hfx. Co., NS. Isabel died in Brockton, 

Mass., on 26 Jan 1911; she was 44. 
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   On 2 Sep 1889 when Isabel was 22, she married James Cruickshank in Boston, Mass. 

Born in 1857. James died in 1934; he was 77. 
 
   s/o John and Barbara 
  xi. Alfred (Died as Infant). Born in 1868. Alfred died in 1868; he was <1. 
 43 xii. Maggie D. (1 Apr 1870-12 Jun 1908) 
 
8. Christiana MacInnes (Miles1). Born in Aug 1810. 
 
They had 13 children who as adults moved to the United States. 
 
On 30 Nov 1826 when Christiana was 16, she married Alexander Cruickshank, son of James Merklin 
Cruickshank (1753-2 Sep 1856) & Elizabeth Gordon (ca 1779-2 Jun 1873). Born on 12 Jun 1801 in Gaich, S. 
Morayshire, Speyside, Scotland. Alexander died in St. Louis, MO, on 5 Jan 1881; he was 79. 
 
Alexander (1st son of James & Elizabeth Gordon Cruickshank) md. Christiana MacInnes (dau. of Miles 
MacInnes).  Alexander d 5 Jan. 1881 in St. Louis, Missouri.  They had 3 sons and 9 daus. 
(Jennie Reid) 
 
Further inforation on this family from Byron K. Jennings, 2nd ed. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Jeanette. Born on 23 Nov 1827. Jeanette died in Sep 1870; she was 42. 
 
   Jeanette married Joe Clark. 
 44 ii. Alexander James Cruickshanks (Sep 1829-12 Apr 1905) 
  iii. Elizabeth. Born on 20 Feb 1832. 
 
   On 23 Sep 1850 when Elizabeth was 18, she married Alexander Gordon. 
  iv. Christiana. Born on 12 Dec 1834. 
 
   On 20 Sep 1853 when Christiana was 18, she married Harry Dimock. 
  v. Mary Gordon. Born on 12 Feb 1836. She was never married. 
  vi. Miles. Born on 12 Jun 1838. 
  vii. Alexandrina. Born on 6 May 1841. 
 
   On 27 Apr 1864 when Alexandrina was 22, she married George W. Tremaine. 
  viii. Harriet Patience (Twin). Born on 25 Jul 1843. 
 
   On 23 Aug 1861 when Harriet Patience was 18, she married William Fred Brown. 
  ix. Georgina Prudence (Twin). Born on 25 Jul 1843. 
 
   On 13 Sep 1868 when Georgina Prudence was 25, she married Josiah Jones. 
  x. Hannah L. Born on 6 Mar 1846. 
 
   On 1 May 1864 when Hannah L. was 18, she married George W. Burke. 
  xi. Jennie Sarah. Born on 6 Aug 1848. 
 
   On 2 Sep 1866 when Jennie Sarah was 18, she married Edward Bassett. 
  xii. William James. Born on 24 Apr 1851. William James died in 1873; he was 21. He was 

never married. 
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9. Eliza Ann MacInnes (Miles1). Born on 8 May 1816. Eliza Ann died on 23 Apr 1878; she was 61. 
 
The youngest and 9th child of Miles and Christiana was Eliza Ann, born May 8, 1816. She  married Wellington 
Kent (b. 4/4/1817) son of Colonel James Kent of Upper Musquodoboit and Christiana Guild and sister of Hannah 
Swinburn Kent, who married Samuel Dickey as his second wife. Eliza Ann and Wellington Kent married 
10/15/1842. Eliza Ann MacInnes died April 23, 1878. They had nine children. (Flo Dickey) 
 
On 15 Oct 1842 when Eliza Ann was 26, she married Wellington Kent, son of James Kent (1785-28 Mar 1866) & 
Christiana Guild (-7 Aug 1864). Born on 4 Apr 1817. Wellington died on 11 Oct 1902; he was 85. Buried in Gays 
River United Church Cemetery, Col. Co., NS. Residence: Halifax (1881). 
 
They had 2 sons and 5 daughters. 
 
They had the following children: 
 45 i. Christiana “Melissa” (1844-21 May 1904) 
  ii. Adella. Born in 1846. Adella died in Boston, Mass., on 22 Jul 1870; she was 24. 
  iii. James “Edgar”. Born in 1850. James “Edgar” died in California, USA. 
 
   May be Edward. 
 
   In 1873 when James “Edgar” was 23, he first married Catherine Rafuse in Halifax NS. 

Born in 1850. Catherine died in Halifax NS, in 1881; she was 31. 
 
   On 28 Aug 1881 when James “Edgar” was 31, he second married Euphemia Robinson 

in Halifax NS. Born in 1862. 
  iv. Eliza Emmeline. Born in 1852. Eliza Emmeline died on 28 Mar 1884; she was 32. 

Buried in Gays River United Church Cemetery, NS. She was never married. 
  v. Amanda. Born in 1856. 
 
   Amanda married John Wilbur. 
  vi. Annie. Born in 1861. Annie died in California, USA. 
 46 vii. Samuel Wellington (12 Aug 1861-13 Dec 1959) 
 

 
 
 
 

Third Generation  
-------------------------------------------------- 

Family of Ann/Nancy MacInnes (2) & John MacDougal 
 
 

10. Christiana MacDougal (Ann/Nancy MacInnes2, Miles1). Born on 3 Apr 1807. Christiana died on 17 Mar 1902; 
she was 94. 
 
In 1831 when Christiana was 23, she married William Archibald, son of Hugh Archibald (1 Dec 1773-) & 
Margaret Price Archibald (18 Sep 1777-). Born in 1808 in Musquodoboit, NS. 
 
Miller names five children of William and Christy Archibald, including Eliza “who recently married Mr. 
Wetherby”. 
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They had the following children: 
  i. Miles. Born in 1832. Residence: United States (Miller). 
 46a ii. Catherine McDougall (11 Dec 1836-25 Feb 1910) 
 46b iii. Ann (1838-30 Oct 1894) 
  iv. George. Born in 1840 in Middle Musquodoboit, NS. George died in 1869; he was 29. 

Residence: New Brunswick. 
 46c v. Eliza (26 Jul 1845-24 Jul 1914) 
 
 

Family of Jannet MacInnes (3) & Robert Archibald Logan 
 
 

11. Miles McInnis Logan (Jannet MacInnes2, Miles1). Born on 6 Sep 1816 in Upper Stewiacke, NS. Miles McInnis 
died in 1886; he was 69. 
 
On 26 Oct 1841 when Miles McInnis was 25, he married Agnes Pitt Cook in Halifax NS. Born in 1820. Agnes Pitt 
died in 1878; she was 58. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Jessie B. Born on 18 Mar 1844. Jessie B. died in Windsor, Hants Co., NS, on 2 Sep 1934; 

she was 90. 
 
   dau Harriet 
 
   On 2 Dec 1873 when Jessie B. was 29, she married Henry Joseph Giles in Halifax, NS. 

Born in 1831. Henry Joseph died in 1914; he was 83. 
 47 ii. Robert John (24 Aug 1845-28 Jun 1907) 
  iii. Leander. Born in 1848. Leander died in Meaghers Grant, Hfx. Co., NS, on 4 Jun 1923; 

he was 75. 
 
   Ch. William, Fred, Harriet, C. Harvey 
 
   Leander married Mary Weatherby Jamieson. 
 
12. Mary MacInnes Logan (Jannet MacInnes2, Miles1). Born on 13 Jan 1820 in Middle Musquodoboit, NS. Mary 
MacInnes died on 14 Apr 1896; she was 76. 
 
On 26 Oct 1841 when Mary MacInnes was 21, she married Robert Anderson Guild, son of William Guild (1785-
25 Jan 1862) & Susan Archibald (7 Feb 1787-), in Halifax NS. Born in 1812. Robert Anderson died in 1896; he 
was 84. Residence: St. Croix. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Jennet L. Born on 26 Nov 1843 in Middle Musquodoboit, NS. 
  ii. Susanna Elliot (Died as Child). Born on 18 Mar 1845. Susanna Elliot died on 4 Mar 

1847; she was 1. 
 48 iii. Robert Logan (29 Mar 1847-4 Jan 1918) 
  iv. Hannah Price (Died as Child). Born on 30 Mar 1850. Hannah Price died on 31 May 

1858; she was 8. 
  v. Margaret Ann. Born on 13 Jul 1852 in Musquodoboit, NS. Margaret Ann died in 

Kentville, NS, on 24 Aug 1933; she was 81. 
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   On 10 Feb 1875 when Margaret Ann was 22, she married Henry Campbell Andrews in 
St. Croix, Hants Co., N.S. Born in 1850. Henry Campbell died in 1923; he was 73. 

  vi. William. Born on 13 Mar 1855 in Middle Musquodoboit, NS. William died in Newport, 
Hants Co., on 1 Jan 1929; he was 73. 

  vii. Elizabeth. Born in 1857. Elizabeth died in 1911; she was 54. 
  viii. Mary Logan. Born on 17 Apr 1860. Mary Logan died on 27 Jul 1952; she was 92. 
 
   Mary Logan first married Charles Bailey. 
 
   On 10 Oct 1888 when Mary Logan was 28, she second married Peter Innes in Kentville, 

NS. Born in 1841. Peter died in 1919; he was 78. 
  ix. Samuel Braden Logan. Born on 8 May 1862. 
  x. Thomas H. Born in Jun 1863. 
 
13. Hannah Christiana Logan (Jannet MacInnes2, Miles1). Born on 26 May 1822 in Upper Stewiacke, NS. Hannah 
Christiana died in Minneapolis, MN, on 2 Dec 1907; she was 85. 
 
On 8 Nov 1842 when Hannah Christiana was 20, she married Edward Simpson Taylor, son of George Taylor (30 
Mar 1777-) & Helen Simpson (Sep 1780-). Born in 1821 in Chaswood, Hfx. Co., NS. Edward Simpson died in 
Medina, MN, on 30 Nov 1885; he was 64. 
 
They had the following children: 
 49 i. Joseph Peart (22 Aug 1850-) 
  ii. Elizabeth Helena. Born on 8 Jun 1847. Elizabeth Helena died in Kent, King, 

Washington, on 27 Mar 1923; she was 75. 
 
   Elizabeth Helena married John Kellough, son of Thomas Kellough (1804-1888) & 

Jennet Henderson (1810-1896). Born in 1835. Residence: Seattle, Washington. 
  iii. George. Born in 1852. 
  iv. Edward S. Born in 1855 in Middle Musquodoboit, NS. Edward S. died in Minneapolis, 

MN, on 12 Jul 1940; he was 85. 
 50 v. Malcolm (1858-2 Mar 1887) 
  vi. Miles. Born in 1860. 
  vii. Frank. Born in 1863. 
  viii. Esther. Born in 1871. 
 
   Esther married John Marks. 
 
14. William Logan (Jannet MacInnes2, Miles1). Born on 24 May 1824. William died in 1906; he was 81. 
 
On 12 Apr 1850 when William was 25, he married Catherine Dunbrack, daughter of Alexander Dunbrack (1 Sep 
1786-12 Jan 1887) & Isabelle "Belle" Cruickshank (18 Aug 1788-10 Nov 1889). Born on 17 Mar 1831. Catherine 
died on 28 Feb 1906; she was 74. 
 
They had the following children: 
 51 i. William (25 Jul 1853-) 
  ii. Alexander. 
 
   Alexander married Louise Lay. 
  iii. Flydia. 
 
   Flydia Graham 
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15. Samuel Braden Logan (Jannet MacInnes2, Miles1). Born on 26 Mar 1826 in Upper Stewiacke, Col. Co., NS. 
Samuel Braden died in Worcester, Mass., USA, on 15 May 1900; he was 74. 
 
Samuel Braden married Jemima Elizabeth Nyman in Boston, Mass. Born in 1828. Jemima Elizabeth died in 1899; 
she was 71. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Edgar T. Born in Dec 1854 in Halifax, Nova Scotia. Edgar T. died in Melrose, Mass., in 

1935; he was 80. 
  ii. Arlando Norman. Born in 1857. 
  iii. Hervey Dix. Born on 23 Aug 1863 in Halifax, NS. Hervey Dix died in Medford, 

Middlesex, Mass, on 2 Apr 1914; he was 50. 
  iv. Samuel Miles (Died as Infant). Born on 26 Oct 1866. Samuel Miles died in 1867; he was 

<1. 
 
16. Margaret Ann Logan (Jannet MacInnes2, Miles1). Born on 28 Oct 1828. Margaret Ann died in Upper 
Musquodoboit, NS, in 1904; she was 75. 
 
On 20 May 1860 when Margaret Ann was 31, she married John Grant Dechman, son of John Grant Dechman 
(1790-1 May 1864) & Mary Creelman (1796-9 Apr 1865). Born on 19 Sep 1829. John Grant died on 31 Jan 1887; 
he was 57. 
 
They had the following children: 
 52 i. John Grant (Twin) (17 Jun 1861-1947) 
  ii. Robert Archibald (Twin). Born on 17 Jun 1861 in Middle Musquodoboit, NS. 
  iii. William James. Born on 3 Nov 1864. William James died in 1947; he was 82. 
  iv. Arthur. Born in 1867. 
  v. Leonara Mary. Born on 6 Feb 1870 in Upper Musquodoboit, NS. Leonara Mary died in 

Middle Musquodoboit, NS, on 10 Feb 1951; she was 81. 
 
   On 30 Nov 1904 when Leonara Mary was 34, she married Henry Martin Stewart in 

Upper Musquodoboit, NS. Born in 1868. Henry Martin died in 1934; he was 66. 
  vi. Andrew Creelman. Born on 18 Feb 1873 in Upper Musquodoboit, NS. Andrew 

Creelman died on 21 May 1934; he was 61. 
 
17. Angus McInnes Logan (Jannet MacInnes2, Miles1). Born on 17 Dec 1830 in Upper Stewiacke, Col. Co., NS. 
Angus McInnes died in Medford, Middlesex, MA, on 3 Oct 1917; he was 86. 
 
In Jul 1852 when Angus McInnes was 21, he married Mary Elizabeth Ann Gladwin. Born in 1834. Mary 
Elizabeth Ann died in 1907; she was 73. 
 
d/o Henry Arthur Gladwin and Charlotte Wollery Bourke (B. K. Jennings) 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Henry. Born in 1852. 
  ii. Georgina. Born in 1854. 
  iii. Leonora. Born in 1856. 
  iv. Bessie. Born in 1858. 
  v. Eleanor. Born in 1862. Eleanor died in 1883; she was 21. 
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18. Robert Archibald Logan (Jannet MacInnes2, Miles1). Born on 13 Jul 1833. Robert Archibald died in 1890; he 
was 56. Buried in Hillside Cemetery, Musquodoboit, NS. 
 
In Oct 1856 when Robert Archibald was 23, he married Esther Scott Higgins, daughter of George Higgins & 
Agnes Pitt Scott (19 Sep 1797-). Born on 23 Aug 1834. Esther Scott died in 1925; she was 90. 
 
They had the following children: 
 53 i. William Charles (4 Jul 1858-3 Mar 1920) 
 54 ii. Alfred Logan (19 May 1863-22 Nov 1952) 
 
19. Malcolm McInnis Logan (Jannet MacInnes2, Miles1). Born on 24 Jul 1836. 
 
On 26 Oct 1864 when Malcolm McInnis was 28, he married Marion McNabb in Dartmouth, Nova Scotia. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. James Ross. Born on 7 Aug 1866. 
 
   dau Marion Logan married J. Charles Stedfast 
  ii. Fannie Maud. Born on 16 Jan 1869 in Middle Musquodoboit, NS. 
  iii. Annie Currie. Born on 8 Apr 1872 in Middle Musquodoboit, NS. 
  iv. Edwin. Born in 1873 in Middle Musquodoboit, NS. Edwin died in Eatonville, Pierce, 

Washington, on 19 Oct 1930; he was 57. 
 
 

Family of Mary MacInnes (4) & James Cruickshank 
 
 

20. John Allen Cruickshank (Mary MacInnes2, Miles1). Born on 26 Feb 1831 in Halifax NS. John Allen died in 
Highland Township, Palo Alto, Iowa, on 15 Nov 1924; he was 93. Buried in Highland Cemetery, Ruthven, Palo 
Alto, Iowa. 
 
On 25 Apr 1861 when John Allen was 30, he married Phebe Mariah Freeman in Linn, Iowa. Born in Jul 1841 in 
New York, USA. Phebe Mariah died in Highland Township, Palo Alto, Iowa, in 1906; she was 64. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Orren Wallace. Born on 19 Jul 1862. Orren Wallace died in Ruthven, Palo Alto, Iowa, 

on 22 Dec 1923; he was 61. 
  ii. Lillie M. Born on 10 May 1867 in Lost Island, Palo Alto, Iowa. 
  iii. Laura Frances. Born on 14 Nov 1870 in Spencer, Clay, Iowa. Laura Frances died in 

Palo Alto, Iowa, on 27 Sep 1956; she was 85. 
  iv. George R. Born on 23 Nov 1872 in Palo Alto, Iowa. George R. died in Fall River, South 

Dakota, on 28 Sep 1936; he was 63. 
  v. Lulu Freeman. Born in 1875 in Clay, Iowa. 
  vi. Alonzo J. Born in 1879 in Lost Island, Palo Alto, Iowa. Alonzo J. died in Nevis, 

Hubbard, Minnesota, on 20 Mar 1951; he was 72. 
 
21. Runald Cruickshank (Mary MacInnes2, Miles1). Born in May 1833. Runald died in Central City, Linn, Iowa, 
on 11 Sep 1903; he was 70. 
 
On 8 May 1856 when Runald was 23, he married Julia Ann Marshall in Linn, Iowa. Born in 1837. Julia Ann died 
in 1896; she was 59. 
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They had the following children: 
  i. Mary Francis. Born on 24 Jul 1857. Mary Francis died on 21 May 1916; she was 58. 
  ii. William (Died as Child). Born in 1860. William died in Linn, Iowa, on 27 Feb 1864; he 

was 4. 
  iii. Jennie Marshall. Born on 7 May 1866. Jennie Marshall died in Cedar Rapids, Iowa, on 

16 Nov 1939; she was 73. 
  iv. Wilbur Ronald. Born in Oct 1868. Wilbur Ronald died in Central City, Linn, Iowa, on 9 

Oct 1938; he was 70. 
 
22. William Cruickshank (Mary MacInnes2, Miles1). Born in 1837. William died on 28 Mar 1882; he was 45. 
 
In 1866 when William was 29, he married Matilda Swan in Jackson, Linn, Iowa. Matilda died on 24 Apr 1892. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Louis Watson. Born in Nov 1866 in Linn, Iowa. Louis Watson died in Central City, 

Linn, Iowa, on 16 Jan 1928; he was 61. 
  ii. Amanda. Born in 1872 in Central City, Linn, Iowa. 
 
23. Miles McInnes Cruickshank (Mary MacInnes2, Miles1). Born in 1839. Miles McInnes died in Orange, CA, on 
15 Jan 1916; he was 77. 
 
In 1860 when Miles McInnes was 21, he married Margaret Amelia McLeod in Linn, Iowa. Born in 1841. Margaret 
Amelia died in 1937; she was 96. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Angus J. Born in 1865. 
  ii. Clarence S. Born on 17 Apr 1867 in Maine, Linn, Iowa. Clarence S. died in Orange Co., 

CA, on 22 Mar 1934; he was 66. 
  iii. Lida E. Born on 8 Sep 1869. Lida E. died in Orange Co., CA, on 15 May 1965; she was 

95. 
  iv. Conrad. Born in 1878 in Maine, Linn, Iowa. 
 
24. James Angus Cruickshank (Mary MacInnes2, Miles1). Born on 3 May 1843 in Nova Scotia. James Angus died 
in Vancouver, BC, on 12 Mar 1941; he was 97. 
 
On 1 Apr 1867 when James Angus was 23, he married Elizabeth Ellen Cruickshank in Marion, Linn, Iowa. Born 
on 5 May 1842 in Nova Scotia. Elizabeth Ellen died in Bellingham, Whatcom Co., WA, on 7 Feb 1924; she was 81. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Anna. Born in 1869 in Jackson, Linn, Iowa. 
  ii. Andrew J. Born in 1872 in Jackson, Linn, Iowa. 
  iii. Mary. Born in 1874 in Jackson, Linn, Iowa. 
  iv. William Hays. Born on 15 May 1877 in Jackson, Linn, Iowa. William Hays died in 

Portland, OR, in Jul 1966; he was 89. 
  v. Shirley. Born on 15 Nov 1879. Shirley died in Princeton, BC, on 4 Apr 1938; she was 58. 
  vi. Ralph August. Born on 22 Apr 1885. Ralph August died in Princeton, BC, on 6 Dec 

1960; he was 75. 
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Family of Ranald MacInnes (6) & Ellaphallia Currie 

 
 

31. Ronald MacInnes (Ranald2, Miles1). Born on 23 Dec 1849 in Meaghers Grant, Halifax Co., NS. Ronald died in 
Windsor, Hants Co., NS, on 19 Dec 1942; he was 92. Buried in Fairview Cemetery, Halifax. Residence: Halifax. 
 
July 30, 1883, Milford. Ronald McInnes 32 lumberman res. Sheet Harbour, b. Meaghers Grant s/o Ronald, 
millwright and Ella married by Rev. A. B. Dickie to Carrie W. McHeffey 17 b. Gays River d/o Henry, carpenter, 
and Annie {Hay}  (NSHVS) 
 
Grace Cassidy, dau., informant at death (NSHVS). 
 
On 30 Jul 1883 when Ronald was 33, he married Carrie McHeffey in Milford Station, Hants Co., NS. Born in 1866 
in Gays River, Col. Co., NS, d/o Henry McHeffey and Annie Hay. Carrie died in Woodside, Halifax NS, on 15 Sep 
1948; she was 82. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Annie “Marion”. Born on 4 Jun 1884 in Sheet Harbour, Halifax Co., NS. Annie 

“Marion” died in Halifax NS, on 8 Dec 1918; she was 34. Buried in Fairview Cemetery, 
Halifax. She was never married. 

  ii. Margaret “Grace”. Born on 28 Nov 1890 in Halifax NS. Margaret “Grace” died in 
1987; she was 96. Buried in Lockerby Memorial Cemetery, Tatamagouche. 

 
   On 23 May 1922 when Margaret “Grace” was 31, she married Harold Leroy Cassidy in 

Halifax, NS. Born on 25 May 1894 in Malden, Mass., USA. Harold Leroy died in 
Tatamagouche, Col. Co., NS, on 9 Aug 1952; he was 58. 

  iii. Ellaphallie Curry. Born on 10 Jun 1892 in Halifax, N.S. Ellaphallie Curry died in 
Vancouver BC, on 21 Jun 1949; she was 57. Buried in Mountain View Cemetery, 
Vancouver, BC. Occupation: Nursing Sister, Canadian Army Medical Corps. 

 
   Ellaphallie Curry married Lyle Simpson. 
  iv. Harold (Harry) Frederick. Born on 17 Feb 1897 in Halifax NS. Harold (Harry) 

Frederick died in Halifax, NS, on 24 Oct 1962; he was 65. Buried in Fairview Cemetery, 
Halifax. He was never married. 

 75 v. Norman (26 Sep 1899-22 Jan 1989) 
 
32. Alfred MacInnes (Ranald2, Miles1). Born on 8 Jul 1852 in Meaghers Grant, Halifax Co., NS. Alfred died in 
Sheet Harbour, Halifax Co., NS, on 19 Feb 1930; he was 77. Buried in Sheet Harbour, Halifax Co., NS. Residence: 
Sheet Harbour. 
 
s/o Ronald and Ella (NSHVS Marriages) 
s/o Ronald MacInnes and Ellaphally Currie (b. Windsor). Lillian MacPhee, Sheet Harbour, dau. (NSHVS Deaths) 
Married by Rev. A. B. Dickie at Salmon River, Halifax Co. (PW Sat 21 Dec 1878) 
 
1891 census Sheet Harbour McInnis Alfred 38 Sarah 40 James R. 10 Lillie 6 Ellaphalla (W) mother 78. 
1901 census Sheet Harbour McInnis Alfred head 48 Sarah wife 51 Rupert son 20 Lillie dau 16 Edith dau 4. 
1911 census Sheet Harbour McInnis Alfred head 59 Sarah A. wife 62 Edith dau 25 Rupert son 31 Ady dau-in-law 
27 Lillian dau 7 Edna dau 5 Mildred dau 3 Alfred son 0. 
 
Murdock Leroy MacInnes 26 b. Sheet Harbour, s/o John MacInnes, b. Sheet Harbour, and Eva Blanche Harnish, 
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md. Lydia Muriel Bezanson 17, d/o Oscar Roy Bezanson, b. Sheet Harbour, and Annie Elizabeth Pye. 14 Dec 1939, 
Port Dufferin, Halifax Co. 
 
MacINNIS, Lydia Muriel "Dolly" - 85, passed away peacefully on April 13, 2007, in Northwood Manor, Halifax. 
Born in Sheet Harbour, Halifax Co., on April 9, 1922, she was a daughter of the late Roy and Annie (Pye) Bezanson. 
Dolly was a member of St. Andrews Anglican Church, Watt Section. She is survived by daughters, Linda (John C.) 
MacInnis, Sheet Harbour; Joan (Richard) Lawrence, Lakeview; sister, Helen Spears, Sheet Harbour; grandsons, 
Darrell MacInnis, Fort McMurray, Alta; Carmen MacInnis (Janet LeLievre), Porters Lake; Richard (Linda) 
MacInnis, Lake Echo; Wayne (Bev) MacInnis, Sheet Harbour; great-grandchildren, Natasha, Tyler, Mallory, Colby, 
and Ryan. She was predeceased by husband, Murdock; brothers, Eric and Harold, Cyril in infancy; sister, Trixie 
Murphy. Burial in St. Andrew's Church Cemetery, Watt Section, Nova Scotia. 
 
Murdock Leroy MacInnes b. Dec 23 1912 died 16 Aug 1962 Sheet Harbour. 
 
30 Mar 1911 Sheet Harbour Passage, John MacInnes 25 b. Sheet Harbour s/o John, lumberman, and Mary md. Eva 
Harnish 18 b. Sheet Harbour Passage d/o Amos and Susanna. 
John Alex McInnes, b. 18 Dec 1916 Sheet Harbour, s/o John P. McInnes and Eva Blanche Harnish (NSHVS) 
 
On 17 Dec 1879 when Alfred was 27, he married Sarah A. Whitman in Salmon River, Halifax Co., NS. Born on 28 
Feb 1850 in Salmon River, Halifax Co., NS. Sarah A. died in 1930; she was 79. 
 
Birth date Feb 29 on 1901 census. 
 
They had the following children: 
 76 i. James “Rupert” (11 May 1880-9 Feb 1930) 
  ii. Mary “Lillian”. Born on 31 May 1884 in Sheet Harbour, Halifax Co., NS. Mary 

“Lillian” died in 1972; she was 87. 
 
   Named on headstone with parents. 
 
   On 18 Apr 1903 when Mary “Lillian” was 18, she married Archibald J. McPhee in Port 

Dufferin, Halifax Co., NS. Born in 1872 in Sheet Harbour, Halifax Co., NS. 
 
   s/o John (merchant) and Susan McPhee, Sheet Harbour. 
  iii. Edith Lucy. Born on 4 May 1886 in Sheet Harbour, Halifax Co., NS. 
 
   On 20 Jul 1929 when Edith Lucy was 43, she married Harry Smith Donald in Moncton, 

NB. Born in 1897. 
 
 

Family of Malcolm MacInnes (7) & Isabel Rhind 
 
 

33. Miles MacInnes (Malcolm2, Miles1). Born on 25 Dec 1832. Miles died in Boston, Mass., on 8 Jan 1898; he was 
65. Residence: Halifax 1871 census . 
 
Miles married Ms. MacIntosh of St.Mary's, Nova Scotia. They were married by the Rev. John Sprott on June 30, 
1853.  They had 4 sons 4 daughters (Jennie Reid). 
 
Miles married Jane McIntosh. Jane died in Boston, Mass. on 21 Sep 1883. 
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d/o Edward and Mary McIntosh. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Edward. Born in 1854. 
 
   On 27 Aug 1879 when Edward was 25, he married Annie Riley in Manhattan, New 

York, USA. Born in 1858. 
 77 ii. Charles Allen McInnes (1 Jun 1856-28 Apr 1911) 
  iii. Alverias. Born on 6 Jun 1858. 
 
   s/o Miles MacInnes and Jane MacIntosh (Mass. Marriages to Leonora Stuart) 
 
   1920 US census Quincy, Mass., wife Annie 
   1930 US census Quincy, Mass., wife Lenora 
 
   On 6 Nov 1889 when Alverias was 31, he first married Annie Elizabeth Schoner in 

Manhattan, New York, USA. Born in 1865. 
 
   On 6 Feb 1924 when Alverias was 65, he second married Leonara Annie Stuart, 

daughter of Albert Isaac Stuart & 36. Barbara Ann MacInnes (10 Sep 1843-), in 
Quincy, Mass. Born in 1877. 

 
   d/o Albert Stuart and Annie MacInnes (Mass. Marriages) 
  iv. Jennett J. Born in 1861. Jennett J. died in Boston, Mass., on 2 Mar 1896; she was 35. 
 
   Jennett J. married George H. Johnson. 
  v. Melvin. Born on 20 Jun 1863. 
 
   1900 US census Boston, boarder with brother-in-law William Bannister. 
 
   Single, age 51, when he married Annie E. Fay (widowed). 
 
   On 4 Sep 1915 when Melvin was 52, he married Annie E. Mahoney in Manhattan, New 

York, USA. Born in 1875 in Halifax, Nova Scotia. 
 
   d/o Michael Mahoney and Margaret A. Buckley. 
  vi. Annie B. Born in 1865. Annie B. died in Boston, Mass., on 7 Jul 1885; she was 20. 
  vii. Sarah J. Born in 1866. Sarah J. died in Boston, Mass., on 4 Mar 1884; she was 18. 
 78 viii. Matilda S. (1868-18 Jun 1896) 
 
34. John MacInnes (Malcolm2, Miles1). Born on 28 Feb 1837. John died on 10 Oct 1907; he was 70. Buried in 
Camp Hill Cemetery, Halifax. Residence: Halifax (1901). 
 
John, Annie, Emma and James Wilson, and Henry and George are all on the same headston, Camp Hill Cemetery. 
 
On 4 Jan 1865 when John was 27, he married Annie Bendelier in Halifax NS. Born in 1843 in Fredericton, New 
Brunswick. Annie died in Halifax NS, on 18 Oct 1933; she was 90. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Emma Louisa. Born on 1 Jun 1867 in Halifax NS. Emma Louisa died in halifax on 12 

Nov 1937; she was 70. Buried in Camp Hill Cemetery. 
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   George MacInnes, brother, informant (NS Deaths) 
 
   Emma Louisa married James E. Wilson. James E. died on 19 Jan 1935. 
 79 ii. John Alfred (26 May 1869-23 Nov 1947) 
  iii. William Rufus. Born on 15 Apr 1874 in Halifax NS. William Rufus died in Halifax NS, 

on 24 May 1935; he was 61. Buried in Camp Hill Cemetery, Halifax. 
 
   Also on this stone are family members: 
   Daughter Marion M. Gill (d. 26 Jun 1972) 
   His wife Eva Mary (d. 9 Aug 1973) 
   Daughter Anne C. (d. 8 Mar 2007) 
 
   William Rufus married Eva Mary Walsh. Eva Mary died on 9 Aug 1973. 
  iv. Henry Walter. Born on 2 May 1875. Henry Walter died on 7 Mar 1911; he was 35. 

Buried in Camp Hill Cemetery, Halifax. 
  v. Frederick Charles. Born on 9 Sep 1876 in Halifax NS. 
  vi. George Evans. Born on 17 Jan 1878 in Halifax NS. George Evans died in Halifax NS, on 

20 Feb 1941; he was 63. Buried in Camp Hill. 
 
   Mrs. Alfred MacInnes, sister-in-law, informant. 
 
35. Malcolm MacInnes (Malcolm2, Miles1). Born on 9 Apr 1839 in Middle Musquodoboit, NS. Malcolm died in 
Truro, Colchester Co., NS, on 2 Sep 1915; he was 76. Buried in Watson Cemetery, Truro, NS. 
 
1881 census Truro McInnes Malcolm 37 Melissa 35 Norman 11 John 7 Leonora 6 Lillie M. 2. 
1891 census Truro McInnis Malcolm 51 Melissa 47 Norman 21 John 17 Alice L. 16 Lillie M. 12 George M. 8. 
1901 census Truro McInnis Malcolm (W) 62 Norman 31 Lenora O. 26 Lillie M. 22 George M. 18. 
 
On 31 Dec 1868 when Malcolm was 29, he married Melissa Eunice Cole, daughter of George Cole (1805-18 Jan 
1892) & Alice Ogilvie (1804-3 Jul 1873), in Middle Musquodoboit, NS. Born in 1845 in Elderbank, Hfx. Co., NS. 
Melissa Eunice died in Truro, Colchester Co., NS, on 25 Dec 1896; she was 51. Buried in Watson Cemetery, Truro, 
NS. 
 
d/o Geo. and Alice (NS Marriages) 
 
They had the following children: 
 80 i. Norman (17 May 1870-22 Apr 1942) 
  ii. John. Born on 19 Sep 1873 in Middle Musquodoboit, NS. 
  iii. Lenora Alice. Born on 1 Apr 1875 in Middle Musquodoboit, NS. 
  iv. Lillie. Born on 26 Feb 1879. 
 
   On 27 Sep 1905 when Lillie was 26, she married Richard Carey in Athol, Worcester, 

Mass. Born in 1884. Richard died in 1957; he was 73. 
 81 v. George Malcolm (12 Oct 1882-5 Apr 1963) 
 
 

Family of Malcolm MacInnes (7) & Jane (Jean) Shaw 
 
 

36. Barbara Ann MacInnes (Malcolm2, Miles1). Born on 10 Sep 1843. 
 
Ch. John (ch. Charles, Lester, Gladys, Annie), Fanny (md. Donald Turner, ch. Earl, Percival, Donald, Ralph, 
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Lenora,George, Bertram, Harvey), Albert (unm), Thomas (md. Minnie McDonald), Lenora (b. 1876, md. Alveriaz 
MacInnes), Charles (md. Katie Hartman, no ch.), Harvey (md. Frances Chisholm, no ch.), Isabelle Stuart (md. 
William Wentzell, on dau. Barbara, md. Arthur L. McKeague, no ch.). Barbara McKeague, her mother Isabelle 
Stuart and her aunt Mrs. Alveriaz MacInnes all lived together in New York. 
(Jennie Reid; B. K. Jennings, 2nd ed.) 
 
Barbara Ann married Albert Isaac Stuart. 
 
They had one child: 
  i. Leonara Annie. Born in 1877. 
 
   d/o Albert Stuart and Annie MacInnes (Mass. Marriages) 
 
   On 6 Feb 1924 when Leonara Annie was 47, she married Alverias MacInnes, son of 33. 

Miles MacInnes (25 Dec 1832-8 Jan 1898) & Jane McIntosh (-21 Sep 1883), in 
Quincy, Mass. Born on 6 Jun 1858. 

 
   s/o Miles MacInnes and Jane MacIntosh (Mass. Marriages to Leonora Stuart) 
 
   1920 US census Quincy, Mass., wife Annie 
   1930 US census Quincy, Mass., wife Lenora 
 
 

Family of Malcolm MacInnes (7) & Esther Dunbrack 
 
 

37. Angus MacInnes (Malcolm2, Miles1). Born on 7 Dec 1848 in Meaghers Grant, Hfx. Co., NS. Angus died in 
Tewksbury, Middlesex, Mass., on 29 Oct 1905; he was 56. Buried in Cambridge Cemetery. 
 
On 9 Jul 1873 when Angus was 24, he married Martha Seeton, daughter of James Seeton (1814-9 Nov 1901) & 
Frances Sophia Wright (20 May 1825-15 Aug 1854), in Middle Musquodoboit, NS. Born in Jul 1850 in Meaghers 
Grant, Hfx. Co., NS. Martha died in Somerville, Mass., on 8 Mar 1905; she was 54. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Sarah (Died as Child). Born in 1876. Sarah died in 1881; she was 5. 
  ii. Esther Sophia (Died as Child). Born in 1879. Esther Sophia died in 1881; she was 2. 
 82 iii. Matilda “Louise” (26 Aug 1881-7 May 1974) 
 
38. Agnes Lena MacInnes (Malcolm2, Miles1). Born on 30 Oct 1850 in Meaghers Grant, Hfx. Co., NS. Agnes Lena 
died in Newton, Middlesex, MA, on 22 Apr 1931; she was 80. 
 
On 17 Sep 1874 when Agnes Lena was 23, she married David Seeton, son of Andrew Seeton (11 May 1812-) & 
Matilda Porter (1821-), in Portland, Maine. Born on 28 Feb 1847 in Londonderry, Col. Co., NS. David died in 
Newton, Mass., on 8 Jun 1911; he was 64. 
 
A cousin of Martha Seeton, married to Angus McInnis. David was a Mechanic at Goffstown, New Hampshire until 
1880 before settling at Newton, Massachussetts where he died. 
 
They had the following children: 
 83 i. Leonard Everett (9 Oct 1876-1 Oct 1941) 
 84 ii. Edward Malcolm (29 Jan 1878-1950) 
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39. Leonora Janet MacInnes (Malcolm2, Miles1). Born on 27 Feb 1857 in Meagher's Grant, NS. Leonora Janet died 
in Halifax, NS, on 16 Dec 1925; she was 68. 
 
On 6 Sep 1881 when Leonora Janet was 24, she married Elijah S. Pace in Halifax, NS. Born on 28 Jan 1849 in Glen 
Margaret, Halifax Co. Elijah S. died in Halifax, NS, on 3 Mar 1929; he was 80. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Clifford Sylvester. Born on 5 Jul 1882 in Halifax NS. Clifford Sylvester died in Nelson, 

BC, on 24 Nov 1945; he was 63. 
  ii. Percy Elsmore. Born on 6 Feb 1886 in Halifax (VG Hospital), NS. Percy Elsmore died 

in Bridgewater, NS, on 17 Sep 1947; he was 61. Buried in St. Johns Cemetery, Halifax. 
Occupation: MacCulloch Lumbering Company. Residence: Halifax. 

 
   s/o Elijah Pace and Lenora MacInnes. Wife Grace Pace (NS Deaths). 
  iii. Lester Welsford. Born on 20 Oct 1889 in Halifax NS. Lester Welsford died in Ashland, 

Grafton, New Hampshire, on 4 Jul 1948; he was 58. 
  iv. June Irene. Born in 1894 in Halifax, Nova Scotia. June Irene died in Halifax NS, on 1 

Jul 1984; she was 90. 
 
40. Mary Elen MacInnes (Malcolm2, Miles1). Born on 12 Aug 1860 in Meaghers Grant, Hfx. Co., NS. Mary Elen 
died in Wayland, Mass., on 1 Mar 1890; she was 29. 
 
Mary Elen married John W. Carey. Born in 1854. John W. died in 1926; he was 72. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Frederick E. Born in 1883. Frederick E. died in 1946; he was 63. 
  ii. Esther. Born on 25 May 1877 in Wayland, Mass. Esther died in Woodbridge, Prine 

William, Virginia, on 23 Dec 1976; she was 99. 
 
   Dau. Doris Isabel Sabina married Gray Walton Hume, Jr., Harrisonburg, VA. 
   Son Gordon Arthur Sabina married Lois Freiburg, Arizona. 
   (Flo Dickey) 
 
   On 8 Jun 1909 when Esther was 32, she married Charles Arthur Sabine in Brockton, 

Mass. Born in 1887. Charles Arthur died in 1970; he was 83. 
 
41. Eliza Ann MacInnes (Malcolm2, Miles1). Born on 31 Aug 1862 in Meaghers Grant, Hfx. Co., NS. Eliza Ann 
died in Boscawen, Merrimack, New Hampshire, on 16 Mar 1931; she was 68. 
 
On 16 Sep 1885 when Eliza Ann was 23, she married William A. Hale in Manchester, Hillsborough, NH. Born in 
1860. William A. died in 1940; he was 80. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Alice M. Born on 9 May 1889 in Goffstown, Hillsborough, NH. Alice M. died in 

Merrimack, NH, in Oct 1974; she was 85. 
  ii. Ida Locke. Born on 5 Dec 1892 in Goffstown, Hillsborough, NH. Ida Locke died in 

Belknap, NH, on 16 May 1989; she was 96. 
 
   On 4 Oct 1916 when Ida Locke was 23, she married Wallace Oliver Tenney in 

Boscawen, Merrimack, New Hampshire. Born in 1889. Wallace Oliver died in 1931; he 
was 42. 
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42. Emma MacInnes (Malcolm2, Miles1). Born on 4 Dec 1864. Residence: 1910-1940 Somerville, Mass. 
 
Children Frank and Priscilla 
 
On 12 Aug 1899 when Emma was 34, she married Frank William Turner in Somersworth, Strafford, New 
Hampshire. Born in 1865. 
 
They had one child: 
  i. Frank William Jr. Born on 21 May 1901 in Somerville, Mass. Frank William died in 

Pennsylvania on 12 Nov 1993; he was 92. 
 
43. Maggie D. MacInnes (Malcolm2, Miles1). Born on 1 Apr 1870 in Meaghers Grant, Hfx. Co., NS. Maggie D. 
died in Hyde Park, Boston, MA, on 12 Jun 1908; she was 38. 
 
On 28 Nov 1889 when Maggie D. was 19, she married Joseph Collins Brown in Hingham, Mass. Born in 1864 in 
Yarmouth, NS. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Percy Arthur (Died as Child). Born on 18 Sep 1890. Percy Arthur died in Medford, 

Middlesex, Mass, on 5 Aug 1898; he was 7. 
  ii. Ruby E. Born on 20 Aug 1894 in Medford, Middlesex, Mass. Ruby E. died in Sayre, 

Bradford, Pennsylvania, on 1 Mar 1943; she was 48. 
 
   On 3 Feb 1915 when Ruby E. was 20, she married Douglas Gerald McLean in Boston, 

Mass. Born in 1891. Douglas Gerald died in 1983; he was 92. 
  iii. Blanche (Died as Child). Born on 29 Mar 1900. Blanche died in Hyde Park, Boston, MA, 

on 5 Jan 1908; she was 7. 
  iv. Florence. Born on 27 Apr 1903 in Somerville, Mass. 
 
   On 16 Jun 1923 when Florence was 20, she married Lewie Gordon Lugton in Reading, 

Middlesex, MA. Born in 1903. Lewie Gordon died in 1973; he was 70. 
 
 

Family of Christiana MacInnes (8) & Alexander Cruickshank 
 
 

44. Alexander James Cruickshanks (Christiana MacInnes2, Miles1). Born in Sep 1829. Alexander James died on 
12 Apr 1905; he was 75. 
 
On 11 Oct 1854 when Alexander James was 25, he married Agnes Louise Clow. Born on 1 Oct 1832 in Dartmouth, 
NS. Agnes Louise died in St. Louis, MO, on 25 Nov 1876; she was 44. 
 
d/o John Stevenet Clow and Agnes Wayman Redman. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Sarah Louise. Born on 5 Aug 1856 in Boston, Mass. 
 
   Sarah Louise married Al Bowman. 
  ii. George Alexander. Born on 8 Mar 1859 in Hamilton, NJ. 
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   George Alexander married Mildred Berrier. 
  iii. Richard Sherwin. Born on 25 Aug 1861 in Bristol, PA. 
 
   Richard Sherwin married Lena Vooris. 
 
 

Family of Eliza Ann MacInnes (9) & Wellington Kent 
 
 

45. Christiana “Melissa” Kent (Eliza Ann MacInnes2, Miles1). Born in 1844. Christiana “Melissa” died in Everett, 
MA, on 21 May 1904; she was 60. 
 
On 5 Nov 1872 when Christiana “Melissa” was 28, she married William Wise Livingston in Shubenacadie, Hants 
Co., NS. Born in 1850. William Wise died in 1921; he was 71. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Margaret Adela. Born on 24 Aug 1873 in Enfield, Hants Co., NS. 
  ii. Lewis Henry Selden. Born on 18 May 1875 in Enfield, Hants Co., NS. Lewis Henry 

Selden died in Newton, Middlesex, MA, on 9 Dec 1915; he was 40. 
  iii. James K. Born on 19 May 1877 in Enfield, Hants Co., NS. 
  iv. Francis W. (Died as Child). Born in 1880. Francis W. died in Everett, Middlesex, Mass., 

on 1 Sep 1894; he was 14. 
  v. Emma. Born in Nov 1883 in Milford Station, Hants Co., N.S. 
 
46. Samuel Wellington Kent (Eliza Ann MacInnes2, Miles1). Born on 12 Aug 1861. Samuel Wellington died in 
Halifax NS, on 13 Dec 1959; he was 98. Buried in Gays River United Church Cemetery, Col. Co., NS. Residence: 
Halifax (1901). 
 
Samuel Wellington Kent (1861-1959) married (1) Jane MacQuinn and had one child Jane Kent, married William 
Langille. Samuel married (2) Gertrude Stevenson, the daughter of  Dr. R.R. Stevenson from Virginia and Frances 
Illslay, and they had ten children, including Emma Kent married Ernest Benjamin, Mae Kent married Mr. McPhail, 
Arnie Kent married Mr. McLain, and Guy Wellington Kent. 
 
Samuel Wellington first married Jane A. McQuinn. Born in 1863. Jane A. died on 12 May 1886; she was 23. 
Buried in Gays River Church Cemetery. 
 
They had one child: 
  i. Jane Abigail. Born on 15 May 1886. 
 
   Jane Abigail married William Langille. 
 
 
Samuel Wellington second married Gertrude Stevenson. Born on 6 Nov 1868 in Richmond, Virginia. Gertrude 
died on 23 Oct 1938; she was 69. Buried in Gays River United Church Cemetery, NS. 
 
The daughter of  Dr. R.R. Stevenson from Virginia and Frances Illslay 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. James Edgar (Died as Child). Born in 1889. James Edgar died on 1 Sep 1890; he was 1. 

Buried in Gays River United Church Cemetery,  NS. 
  ii. Emma L. Born on 25 Jun 1890. Residence: Brookfield, NS (1962). 
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   Emma L. married Ernest Benjamin. Born in 1879. Ernest died in 1966; he was 87. 
  iii. Frank Robert. Born on 19 Jan 1892. Frank Robert died in World War I. 
  iv. Adella. Born on 21 Apr 1895. 
 
   Adella married Daniel McPhail. 
  v. Josephone L. Born in 1898. 
  vi. Helena Mae. Born on 14 Nov 1899. 
 
   Helena Mae married John McPhail. 
  vii. Guy Wellington. Born on 16 Dec 1901 in Cooks Brook, NS. Guy Wellington died in 

Truro, Colchester Co., NS, on 30 Aug 1969; he was 67. Buried in Gays River United 
Church Cemetery,  NS. 

 
   In 1928 when Guy Wellington was 26, he married Norma B. Grant. Born on 14 Sep 

1908 in Musquodoboit Harbour, NS. Norma B. died in 1988; she was 79. 
 
   d/o William Grant and Ethel M. Reid 
  viii. Sidney D. Born on 28 Sep 1904 in Cooks Brook, NS. Sidney D. died in Truro, Colchester 

Co., NS, on 20 Aug 1939; he was 34. Buried in Gays River United Church Cemetery,  
NS. 

 
   In 1931 when Sidney D. was 26, he married Irene Duggen. 
  ix. Annie. 
 
   Annie married Norman McLean. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Fourth Generation  
-------------------------------------------------- 

Family of Christiana MacDougal (10) & William Archibald 
 
 

46a. Catherine McDougall Archibald (Christiana MacDougal2, John1). Born on 11 Dec 1836 in Middle 
Musquodoboit, NS. Catherine McDougall died in Lantz, NS, on 25 Feb 1910; she was 73. 
 
Three sons and one daughter (Miller). 
 
On 30 Oct 1862 when Catherine McDougall was 25, she married John Woodworth, son of Stephen Woodworth 
(3 Nov 1796-9 Sep 1867) & Charlotte Lenora Andrews (23 Mar 1798-12 Jun 1882). Born on 16 Nov 1833 in 
Shubenacadie, Hants Co. John died in Halifax, N.S., on 27 Aug 1915; he was 81. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Miles. Born on 5 Aug 1860. Miles died on 22 Oct 1888; he was 28. 
 84a ii. John H. (16 Jan 1863-4 May 1944) 
 84b iii. Charles Stephen (Jun 1864-1 Jun 1919) 
  iv. Dolly. Born in 1866. 
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 84c v. Christie Ann (3 Apr 1868-27 Apr 1932) 
  vi. Edward (Died as Child). Born in 1875. Edward died on 18 Dec 1876; he was 1. 
 84d vii. Eliza Margaret (3 Dec 1878-26 Oct 1965) 
 
46b. Ann Archibald (Christiana MacDougal2, John1). Born in 1838. Ann died on 30 Oct 1894; she was 56. 
 
Three sons (Miller). 
 
On 26 Oct 1863 when Ann was 25, she married Benjamin Green in Truro Road. Born in 1831 in Middle 
Musquodoboit, NS. Benjamin died in Vancouver, BC, on 25 Apr 1915; he was 84. Residence: Shubenacadie (1871, 
1881). 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Robert Henry. Born on 25 Jul 1863 in Hants County, NS. Robert Henry died in 

Vancouver, BC, on 25 Apr 1915; he was 51. 
 
   Family of 10 (Familysearch) 
 
   Robert Henry married Matilda Jane Horne. Born on 4 Oct 1866 in Halifax NS. 
  ii. William Archibald. Born on 25 Jan 1866. 
  iii. George Edward. Born on 14 Jan 1868 in Milford Station, Hants Co., NS. George 

Edward died in Lantz, NS, on 27 Jan 1945; he was 77. 
 
   Family of 5 
 
   On 24 Jan 1900 when George Edward was 32, he married Isabel Barbara Isenor in 

Dutch Settlement, Halifax, NS. Born in 1881. Isabel Barbara died in 1959; she was 78. 
  iv. Annie Muir. Born on 15 Nov 1877 in Barney’s Brook, Hants Co. Annie Muir died in 

Lantz, NS, in 1972; she was 94. 
 
   On 19 Jan 1898 when Annie Muir was 20, she married Hector Lewis Miller in Barney’s 

Brook, Hants Co. Born on 9 Sep 1871 in Georgefield, Hants Co., N.S. Hector Lewis died 
in Lantz Siding, NS, on 27 Mar 1939; he was 67. 

 
   s/o Oliver Miller and Katherine Turple. 
   Family of 5 
 
46c. Eliza Archibald (Christiana MacDougal2, John1). Born on 26 Jul 1845 in Musquodoboit, Halifax Co., NS. 
Eliza died in Portland, OR, on 24 Jul 1914; she was 68. 
 
On 4 Mar 1869 when Eliza was 23, she married James William Weatherby, son of William Earl Wetherby (-3 
Oct 1880) & Jane Archibald (27 Jun 1809-), in Truro, Colchester Co., NS. Born in 1842 in River Philip, Cumb. 
Co., NS. James William died in Lower Truro, NS, on 21 Apr 1907; he was 65. 
 
They had one child: 
  i. James Archibald. Born on 2 Sep 1870. James Archibald died in Vancouver, BC, on 30 

Mar 1945; he was 74. 
 
   On 18 Jun 1895 when James Archibald was 24, he married Charlotte Rhind in Boston, 

Mass. 
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Family of Miles McInnis Logan (11) & Agnes Pitt Cook 

 
 

47. Robert John Logan (Miles McInnis3, Jannet MacInnes2, Miles1). Born on 24 Aug 1845. Robert John died on 28 
Jun 1907; he was 61. 
 
On 20 Oct 1877 when Robert John was 32, he married Eleanor Terresia Leslie in Halifax NS. Born in 1852. 
Eleanor Terresia died in 1923; she was 71. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Gertrude. Born on 15 Jun 1878 in Cole Harbour, NS. Gertrude died in Shubenacadie, 

Hants Co., NS, on 26 May 1935; she was 56. Buried in Mill Village Cemetery, 
Shubenacadie. 

 
   On 7 Oct 1903 when Gertrude was 25, she married Frederick Wallace in Halifax NS. 

Born in 1878. Frederick died in 1957; he was 79. 
  ii. E. Hervey (Died as Child). Born in 1879. E. Hervey died in 1886; he was 7. 
  iii. Miles H. Born on 28 May 1881. Miles H. died on 23 Aug 1951; he was 70. Residence: 

Providence, Rhode Island. 
  iv. Clarence Stanley. Born on 22 Apr 1883. Clarence Stanley died in Shubenacadie, Hants 

Co., NS, on 10 Feb 1967; he was 83. 
 
   On 22 Oct 1910 when Clarence Stanley was 27, he married Jessie Rachel Baker in 

Leominster, Worcester, MA. Born in 1889. Jessie Rachel died in 1987; she was 98. 
  v. Jessie Margery. Born on 27 Jan 1885. Jessie Margery died in Hudson, NH, on 25 Jan 

1958; she was 72. 
 
   On 5 Apr 1911 when Jessie Margery was 26, she married Charles Gasher Shunaman in 

Leominster, Worcester, MA. Born in 1877. 
  vi. Vida M. Born on 21 Jul 1888. Vida M. died in 1957; she was 68. 
  vii. Francis Joseph. Born on 8 Mar 1894. Francis Joseph died in Oyen, Alberta, in Oct 1958; 

he was 64. 
 
 

Family of Mary MacInnes Logan (12) & Robert Anderson Guild 
 
 

48. Robert Logan Guild (Mary MacInnes Logan3, Jannet MacInnes2, Miles1). Born on 29 Mar 1847 in 
Musquodoboit, NS. Robert Logan died on 4 Jan 1918; he was 70. Residence: Ellershouse. 
 
s/o Robert A. and Mary (NSHVS marriages) 
 
On 31 Mar 1877 when Robert Logan was 30, he married Amelia Caldwell in Windsor, Nova Scotia. Born in 1857. 
Amelia died in 1944; she was 87. 
 
d/o Edward and Mary (NSHVS) 
 
They had one child: 
 85 i. Roberta Amelia (1899-1973) 
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Family of Hannah Christiana Logan (13) & Edward Simpson Taylor 

 
 

49. Joseph Peart Taylor (Hannah Christiana Logan3, Jannet MacInnes2, Miles1). Born on 22 Aug 1850. 
 
For a number of years, he ran the Grist Mill in Murchyville, and later in Middle Musquodoboit. He died some years 
ago in the Peace River. (B. K. Jennings) 
 
Joseph Peart married Kate Johnson. Born on 22 Sep 1858. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Harry Neil. Born on 23 May 1885. 
  ii. Warren Johnson. Warren Johnson died on 13 May 1885. 
  iii. Ernest. Born on 16 Apr 1887. 
  iv. Donald. Born on 6 Mar 1889. 
  v. Ross. Born on 30 Apr 1891. 
  vi. Ernest. Born on 9 Oct 1896. 
 
50. Malcolm Taylor (Hannah Christiana Logan3, Jannet MacInnes2, Miles1). Born in 1858 in Middle 
Musquodoboit, NS. Malcolm died in Minneapolis, MN, on 2 Mar 1887; he was 29. 
 
Malcolm married Mary Ellen Bates, daughter of Richard Marshall Bates (20 Sep 1830-19 Jun 1911) & Sarah D. 
McDonald (31 Mar 1835-19 Mar 1919), in Minneapolis, MN. Born in Glenmore, Musquodoboit, NS. Mary Ellen 
died in 1909. 
 
They had one child: 
 86 i. Cora Jane (22 Jan 1881-) 
 
 

Family of William Logan (14) & Catherine Dunbrack 
 
 

51. William Logan (William3, Jannet MacInnes2, Miles1). Born on 25 Jul 1853. 
 
William married Isabelle Dunbrack, daughter of Peter Dunbrack (1823-25 Oct 1887) & Charlotte Innes (-13 Oct 
1916). Born on 17 Jun 1871. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Lidia Marie. Born on 13 May 1893. 
  ii. Ralph. Born on 28 Nov 1895. 
 
   Ralph married Mary Collins in Kentville, NS. 
  iii. Blanche (Twin). Born on 22 Aug 1900. 
 
   Blanche married J. Harold Bentley. 
  iv. Bertha (Twin). Born on 22 Aug 1900. 
 
   Bertha married George Greenough. 
  v. Margaret. 
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   Margaret first married Wilford Baker. 
 
   Margaret second married Ray Prouse. 
 
 

Family of Margaret Ann Logan (16) & John Grant Dechman 
 
 

52. John Grant Dechman (Margaret Ann Logan3, Jannet MacInnes2, Miles1). Born on 17 Jun 1861. John Grant 
died in 1947; he was 85. 
 
John Grant married Lydia Jane Holman, daughter of Wiliam Holman (7 Feb 1841-1904) & Rebecca Dunn 
Redmond (11 Apr 1834-1911). Born on 31 Aug 1869 in Upper Musquodoboit, NS. Lydia Jane died in 1923; she 
was 53. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Florence May. Born on 14 Dec 1890. 
  ii. Ethel Parker. Born on 20 Jan 1894. Ethel Parker died in 1948; she was 53. 
  iii. Lottie Ellen. Born on 12 Jun 1897. 
 
 

Family of Robert Archibald Logan (18) & Esther Scott Higgins 
 
 

53. William Charles Logan (Robert Archibald3, Jannet MacInnes2, Miles1). Born on 4 Jul 1858 in Middle 
Musquodoboit, NS. William Charles died in Halifax NS, on 3 Mar 1920; he was 61. 
 
On 25 Nov 1890 when William Charles was 32, he married Jessie Layton McKenzie in Truro, Colchester Co., NS. 
Born on 17 Apr 1859. 
 
d/o William MacKenzie and Jane Burnett. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Robert Archibald. Born on 17 Aug 1892. 
 
   Robert Archibald married Molly Daisy Barrett. 
 87 ii. Arthur Earle (11 Sep 1893-2 Aug 1965) 
  iii. Clarence Pryor. Born on 14 Mar 1896. Clarence Pryor died in Edmonton, AB, on 30 

Nov 1978; he was 82. 
 
   Clarence Pryor married Kathleen Power. 
 
54. Alfred Logan Logan (Robert Archibald3, Jannet MacInnes2, Miles1). Born on 19 May 1863 in Middle 
Musquodoboit, NS. Alfred Logan died in Pembroke, Refrew, ON, on 22 Nov 1952; he was 89. 
 
On 25 Sep 1894 when Alfred Logan was 31, he married Anna Hall in Champlian, Prescott, ON. Born in 1867. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Lloyd Hall. Born on 13 Oct 1895. Lloyd Hall died on 2 Apr 1954; he was 58. 
  ii. Jean Alma. Born on 11 Jan 1899. 
  iii. May Eileen. Born in Dec 1904. 
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Family of Ronald MacInnes (31) & Carrie McHeffey 
 
 

75. Norman MacInnes (Ronald3, Ranald2, Miles1). Born on 26 Sep 1899 in Halifax, N.S. Norman died in East 
Hartford, CT, on 22 Jan 1989; he was 89. 
 
On 18 May 1918 when Norman was 18, he married Anna Blanche Scallion in Halifax NS. Born on 24 Aug 1896 in 
Halifax NS. Anna Blanche died in Hartford, CT, on 22 Jan 1990; she was 93. 
 
They had one child: 
  i. Eva Phaelia Cecilia. Born on 9 Dec 1919 in Halifax NS. 
 
 

Family of Alfred MacInnes (32) & Sarah A. Whitman 
 
 

76. James “Rupert” MacInnes (Alfred3, Ranald2, Miles1). Born on 11 May 1880 in Meaghers Grant, Hfx. Co., NS. 
James “Rupert” died in Dartmouth, NS, on 9 Feb 1930; he was 49. Buried in Mount Hermon Cemetery, Dartmouth. 
 
Alfred F. MacInnes, son (NSHVS) 
 
1911 census Sheet Harbour McInnis Alfred head 59 Sarah A. wife 62 Edith dau 25 Rupert son 31 Ady dau-in-law 
27 Lillian dau 7 Edna dau 5 Mildred dau 3 Alfred son 0. 
 
On 30 Apr 1904 when James “Rupert” was 23, he married Ada Bell Hallett in Country Harbour, Guysborough Co., 
NS. Born on 23 Aug 1884 in Country Harbour, Guysborough Co., NS. Ada Bell died in 1974; she was 89. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Lillian. Born on 25 Sep 1904 in Stormont, Guysborough Co., NS. 
 
   On 5 Sep 1936 when Lillian was 31, she married Alexander S. Smith in Manchester, 

Hillsborough, NH. Born in 1896. 
  ii. Edna Violet. Born on 18 Jan 1906 in Isaac’s Harbour, Guysborough Co., NS. 
  iii. Mildred Beatrice. Born on 1 Mar 1909 in Stormont, Guysborough Co., NS. 
  iv. Alfred Freeman. Born on 20 Apr 1911 in Sheet Harbour, Halifax Co., NS. Buried in St. 

James Cemetery, Sheet Harbour. 
 
   On 30 Mar 1938 when Alfred Freeman was 26, he married Winnifred Beatrice Malay in 

Port Dufferin, Halifax Co., NS. Born on 21 Jun 1917 in New Chester, Guysborough Co., 
NS. Winnifred Beatrice died in Halifax NS, on 20 Nov 1992; she was 75. 

 
   MacINNES, Winnifred B. - Sackville Seniors Manor, Lower Sackville, formerly of Sheet 

Harbour, died November 20, 1992 in Halifax Infirmary. Born in New Chester, 
Guysborough County, she was a daughter of the late Joseph H. and Eliza Jane (Bezanson) 
Malay. She is survived by a daughter, Ada (Mrs. Ernest Martell), Lower Sackville; six 
grandchildren; seven great-grandchildren; sister, Tena (Mrs. Bret MacDonald), Halifax; 
brother, Reginald, Sheet Harbour. She was predeceased by her husband, Alfred; three 
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sons, Raymond, Joseph, James; an infant daughter; sister, Dorothy; brother, Lawrence. 
 
 

Family of Miles MacInnes (33) & Jane McIntosh 
 
 

77. Charles Allen McInnes (Miles MacInnes3, Malcolm2, Miles1). Born on 1 Jun 1856 in Halifax, NS. Charles 
Allen died in New York, NY, on 28 Apr 1911; he was 54. 
 
In 1880 when Charles Allen was 23, he married Mary Ann Conway in Halifax NS. Born in 1857. Mary Ann died 
in New York, NY, on 19 Feb 1939; she was 82. 
 
They had the following children: 
 114 i. Edward (25 Apr 1883-) 
 115 ii. Agnes Cecelia (17 Apr 1885-24 Jun 1961) 
  iii. Charles. Born in 1887. 
  iv. Mary. Born in 1889 in Manhattan, New York, USA. Mary died in 1965; she was 76. 

Buried in East Farmingdale, Suffolk, New York. 
  v. Alvariaz M. (Died as Child). Born in 1892 in Manhattan, New York, USA. Alvariaz M. 

died on 2 Feb 1897; he was 5. 
  vi. Jane. Born in 1895. 
 
   On 17 Feb 1917 when Jane was 22, she first married Boris Norman in Manhattan, New 

York, USA. 
 
   On 7 Oct 1924 when Jane was 29, she second married Julius Frank Buscher in 

Manhattan, New York, USA. Born in 1889. Julius Frank died in 1988; he was 99. 
  vii. William. Born on 25 Jun 1897 in Manhattan, New York, USA. 
 
   On 2 Jun 1928 when William was 30, he married Margaret Mary Cooper in Manhattan, 

New York, USA. Born in 1907. Margaret Mary died in 1956; she was 49. 
  viii. Florence (Died as Infant). Born on 16 Apr 1899. Florence died on 8 Mar 1900; she was 

<1. 
 
78. Matilda S. MacInnes (Miles3, Malcolm2, Miles1). Born in 1868. Matilda S. died in Boston, Mass., on 18 Jun 
1896; she was 28. 
 
On 13 Jul 1887 when Matilda S. was 19, she married William F. Bannister in Boston, Mass. Born in 1863. 
 
1900 US census Boston Bannister William F age 36 b. May 1874 Canada (Engl) Father b. Eng Mother b. Can Years 
married 1 Immigr. 1883 Mary T wife 23 b. Mar 1877 Mass Mother and Father b. Ireland Alfred F 4 b. Feb 1896 
Mass. Mother and Father b. Can MacInnes Melvin Boarder 36 b. Nov 1863 Can Mother and Father b. Can Single 
Immigr. 1883. 
 
Franklin, Ruth and Dorothy, as named in the obituary of Alfred, must have been children from second marriage. 
Dorothy L. Bannister. Born in 1911. Dorothy L. died in 1998; she was 87. Buried in Blue Hill, Braintree, Mass. 
Dorothy L. married Lloyd B. Douglass. Born on 25 Nov 1910 in Quincy, Mass. Lloyd B. died in 1990; he was 79. 
 
They had the following children: 
 116 i. Alfred Francis (12 Feb 1896-1 Nov 1970) 
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Family of John MacInnes (34) & Annie Bendelier 

 
 

79. John Alfred MacInnes (John3, Malcolm2, Miles1). Born on 26 May 1869 in Halifax NS. John Alfred died in 
Halifax NS, on 23 Nov 1947; he was 78. Buried in Camp Hill Cemetery, Halifax. 
 
John Alfred married Edith Harriet Conrod. Born on 20 Oct 1873 in Halifax NS. Edith Harriet died in Halifax NS, 
on 30 Oct 1957; she was 84. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Freda Meredith. Born on 18 Jul 1898 in Halifax, N.S. 
  ii. Jean. Born on 4 May 1900 in Halifax, N.S. Jean died in 1992; she was 91. 
 
   In 1927 when Jean was 26, she married Ralph Meredith Langille in Colchester Co., 

Nova Scotia. Born on 4 Feb 1898 in Truro, Colchester Co., NS. Ralph Meredith died in 
1974; he was 75. 

 
 

Family of Malcolm MacInnes (35) & Melissa Eunice Cole 
 
 

80. Norman MacInnes (Malcolm3, Malcolm2, Miles1). Born on 17 May 1870 in Musquodoboit, Halifax Co., NS. 
Norman died in Truro, Nova Scotia, on 22 Apr 1942; he was 71. 
 
On 6 Jun 1911 when Norman was 41, he married Georginia Taylor, daughter of Peter Taylor (11 Nov 1839-6 Aug 
1909) & Olivia Deyarmond (14 Sep 1845-9 Aug 1903), in Lower Onslow, Col. Co., NS. Born in 1875 in Onslow, 
Col. Co., NS. 
 
d/o Peter and Olive (NS Marriages) 
 
They had one child: 
  i. Malcolm Taylor. Born on 30 Jun 1914 in Truro, Colchester Co., NS. 
 
   On 15 Jul 1942 when Malcolm Taylor was 28, he married Franketta Madge Johnson in 

Truro NS. Born in 1919 in Upper Stewiacke, Col. Co., NS. 
 
   d/o Percy Johnson and Beatrice Grant. 
 
81. George Malcolm MacInnes (Malcolm3, Malcolm2, Miles1). Born on 12 Oct 1882 in Truro, Colchester Co., NS. 
George Malcolm died in Lower Onslow, Col. Co., NS, on 5 Apr 1963; he was 80. Buried in Great Village, Col. Co., 
NS. 
 
Age 44, bachelor, farmer Lower Onslow when he married Ethel Stewart, age 34, spinster, nurse. 
 
On 24 Oct 1927 when George Malcolm was 45, he married Ethel Fletcher Stewart in Truro NS. Born in 1893 in 
Great Village, Col. Co., NS. 
 
They had one child: 

i. Aubrey George. Born on 3 Oct 1930 in Lower Onslow, Col. Co., NS. Aubrey George 
died in Truro, Colchester Co., NS, on 4 Oct 2015; he was 85. Buried in Mahon Cemetery, 
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Great Village. 
MacInnes, Aubrey George ( October 3, 1930 – October 4, 2015) He was born and lived a 
full life in Lower Onslow, Nova Scotia. He is survived by his wife of 64 years, Betty 
(Elisabeth) Lane, children, Bob (Kim), Jo-Ann (Gary Knight), Doug (Wanda), all of 
Lower Onslow and Terrilyn, Georgia, USA; grandchildren, Amanda, Jonathon, Blake, 
Courtney, Elissa, Chayce, Sydney, Zaria, B.J. and step grandsons, Christopher and 
Mathew; six great grandchildren; niece, Joan (Frank) Whippie. Aubrey and Betty were 
very special Foster Parents to many children over the years. He was predeceased by his 
parents George and Ethel (Fletcher) and half brothers, Lloyd and Doug Stewart. Aubrey 
was employed as a mechanic for many years; semi-retired at 60 to drive a school bus for 
seven years. Aubrey and Betty spent many summers camping at Carrs Brook and Sand 
Point making friends and memories. More recent years found him laughing with friends 
at the Open Mic or card games. Family and friends admired him for many reasons. His 
devotion to “Mom”, who he lovingly visited daily, was a tribute to the life they created. 
 
On 22 May 1952 when Aubrey George was 21, he married Elizabeth Mabel Lane in 
Great Village, Col. Co., NS. Born on 5 Jan 1931 in Great Village, Col. Co., NS. Elizabeth 
Mabel died in Debert, NS, on 12 Sep 2017; she was 86. 

 
 

Family of Angus MacInnes (37) & Martha Seeton 
 
 

82. Matilda “Louise” MacInnes (Angus3, Malcolm2, Miles1). Born on 26 Aug 1881 in Cambridge, Middlesex, 
Mass. Matilda “Louise” died in Acton, Middlesex, Mass., on 7 May 1974; she was 92. 
 
On 12 Aug 1907 when Matilda “Louise” was 25, she married Alexander Coleman Lockhart in Belmont, Mass. 
Born on 11 Apr 1886 in St. Martins, New Brunswick. Alexander Coleman died in Newton, Mass., on 21 Jan 1975; 
he was 88. Buried in Belmont, Mass. 
 
s/o Edward Coleman5 Lockhart (William Arnold4, Edward L.3, Alexander2, James1, #33772) and Eliza Jane 
McCurdy. 
 
They had one child: 
  i. Edith Louise. Born on 31 May 1908 in Belmont, Mass. 
 
 

Family of Agnes Lena MacInnes (38) & David Seeton 
 
 

83. Leonard Everett Seeton (Agnes Lena MacInnes3, Malcolm2, Miles1). Born on 9 Oct 1876 in Goffstown, 
Hillsborough, NH. Leonard Everett died in Norristown, Montgomery, Pennsylvania, on 1 Oct 1941; he was 64. 
 
On 9 Oct 1905 when Leonard Everett was 29, he married Abigail Tribble in Newton, Mass. Born in 1877. Abigail 
died in 1958; she was 81. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Eleanor (Died as Child). Born in 1907. Eleanor died in 1914; she was 7. 
  ii. Charles E. Born on 1 Jul 1909 in Newton, Mass. Charles E. died in Villas, Cape May, 

New Jersey, in 1987; he was 77. 
  iii. Leonard Tribble. Born on 1 Aug 1911. Leonard Tribble died in Norristown, 
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Montgomery, Pennsylvania, in 1978; he was 66. 
  iv. John H. Born on 10 May 1913. John H. died on 12 Sep 1974; he was 61. 
 
84. Edward Malcolm Seeton (Agnes Lena MacInnes3, Malcolm2, Miles1). Born on 29 Jan 1878 in Goffstown, 
Hillsborough, NH. Edward Malcolm died in 1950; he was 71. Residence: Goffstown, New Hampshire. 
 
On 25 Aug 1901 when Edward Malcolm was 23, he married Lillian Fitzpatrick in Waltham, Mass. Born in 1879. 
Lillian died in 1968; she was 89. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Frederick Everett. Born on 26 Apr 1908 in Newton, Mass. Frederick Everett died in 

Newton, Mass., on 8 Dec 1978; he was 70. 
  ii. Malcolm Wesley. Born on 31 May 1910 in Newton, Mass. Malcolm Wesley died on 7 

May 1994; he was 83. 
 

 
 
 
 

Fifth Generation  
-------------------------------------------------- 

Family of Catherine McDougall Archibald (46a) & John Woodworth 
 
 

84a. John H. Woodworth (Catherine McDougall Archibald3, Christiana MacDougal2, John1). Born on 16 Jan 1863 
in Shubenacadie, Hants Co. John H. died in Lantz, NS, on 4 May 1944; he was 81. 
 
On 27 Sep 1892 when John H. was 29, he first married Jessie May Isenor in Dutch Settlement, Halifax, NS. Born 
on 18 Aug 1874 in Dutch Village, Halifax. Jessie May died in Dutch Settlement, Halifax, NS, on 16 Mar 1904; she 
was 29. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Eva May. Born on 26 Oct 1892 in Elmsdale, Hants Co., NS. 
 
   Eva May married Ernest Hanlon Spares. Born in 1887. Ernest Hanlon died in 1935; he 

was 48. 
  ii. Annie A. Born on 7 Sep 1894 in Elmsdale, Hants Co., NS. Annie A. died in Westbrook, 

Cumberland, Maine, on 27 Oct 1988; she was 94. 
 
   On 19 Sep 1914 when Annie A. was 20, she first married George Leslie Chapman in 

Truro, Colchester Co., NS. Born in 1893. 
 
   On 6 May 1946 when Annie A. was 51, she second married Benjamin Byron Hartford 

in Maine, USA. Born in 1893. Benjamin Byron died in 1961; he was 68. 
  iii. George Clifford. Born on 15 Aug 1896 in Lantz, NS. George Clifford died in France, 

WW1, on 15 Aug 1917; he was 21. Buried in Vimy, Departement du Pas-de-Calais, 
Nord-Pas-de-Calais, France. 

 
   Service Number: 715213  
   Division: 26th Battalion 
   A groom by trade, he enlisted in the CEF on 20 Dec 1915 in Truro, Nova Scotia, Canada. 
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Missing and presumed killed in action during the battle for Hill 70 and Lens. 
   Son of John Woodworth, of Lantz Siding, Hants Co., Nova Scotia. 
   Private George Clifford Woodworth is commemorated on Page 353 of Canada's First 

World War Book of Remembrance. 
  iv. Christena Irene. Born on 2 Jan 1898 in Barney’s Brook, Hants Co. Christena Irene died 

in Truro, Colchester Co., NS, on 30 Mar 1985; she was 87. 
 
   On 4 Nov 1919 when Christena Irene was 21, she married Frank Talmage Matthews in 

Truro, Colchester Co., NS. Born in 1893. Frank Talmage died in 1978; he was 85. 
  v. William Edgar. Born on 1 Jun 1900 in Barney’s Brook, Hants Co. William Edgar died 

on 21 Mar 1932; he was 31. 
  vi. Muriel Eliza. Born on 13 Apr 1902 in Lantz Siding, NS. 
 
   On 10 Feb 1925 when Muriel Eliza was 22, she married Milton Sinclair Steadman in 

Hants Co., NS. Born in 1893. 
  vii. Harriet Winnifred. Born on 27 Feb 1903 in Elmsdale, Hants Co., NS. 
 
   On 1 Dec 1921 when Harriet Winnifred was 18, she married William Charles Keddy in 

Armdale, Halifax, NS. Born on 8 Dec 1872 in Halifax NS. William Charles died on 13 
Feb 1942; he was 69. 

 
 
On 21 Aug 1906 when John H. was 43, he second married Elta E. Hines, daughter of John William Hines (1 Jan 
1852-27 Dec 1928) & Rebecca Ann Densmore (8 Aug 1846-2 Jan 1938), in Barney’s Brook, Hants Co. Born on 2 
Mar 1881 in Noel, Hants Co., NS. Elta E. died in Lantz, NS, on 14 Aug 1942; she was 61. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Jacqueline. Born on 10 Jan 1909 in Barney’s Brook, Hants Co. Jacqueline died in Lantz, 

NS, on 20 Feb 1999; she was 90. 
 
   On 30 Jun 1926 when Jacqueline was 17, she married Austin Miller, son of Hector D. 

Miller (16 Oct 1874-14 Jun 1966) & 9. Eliza Margaret Woodworth (3 Dec 1878-26 
Oct 1965), in Stewiacke, Col. Co., NS. Born on 15 Jan 1903 in Northfield, Hants Co., 
NS. Austin died in Lantz, NS, on 3 Apr 1968; he was 65. 

  ii. Grant. Born in 1911. 
  iii. Jennie. Born in 1914. Jennie died on 22 Sep 2010; she was 96. 
 
   On 12 Jun 1931 when Jennie was 17, she married Rufus William Foley in Stewiacke, 

Col. Co., NS. 
 
84b. Charles Stephen Woodworth (Catherine McDougall Archibald3, Christiana MacDougal2, John1). Born in Jun 
1864 in Shubenacadie, Hants Co., NS. Charles Stephen died in Lantz, NS, on 1 Jun 1919; he was 55. 
 
On 22 Jun 1898 when Charles Stephen was 34, he married Hannah Jane McAulay in Suffolk, MA. Born on 8 Nov 
1874 in Catalone, Cape Breton. Hannah Jane died in Catalone, Cape Breton, on 4 Dec 1919; she was 45. 
 
d/o Neil Angus MacAulay and Mary Ann MacRury 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Catherine Christine. Born on 13 Sep 1898 in Boston, Mass. Catherine Christine died in 

Falmouth, Barnstable Co., MA, on 28 Mar 1980; she was 81. 
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   On 8 Oct 1927 when Catherine Christine was 29, she married Alexander Peter 
MacIntyre in Dedham, Mass. Born on 25 Oct 1896 in Catalone, Cape Breton. Alexander 
Peter died in Dedham, Mass., on 24 Nov 1943; he was 47. 

  ii. Neil Aulay. Born on 13 Nov 1903 in Glace Bay, Cape Breton, NS. Neil Aulay died in 
Sydney, Cape Breton, NS, on 1 May 1945; he was 41. 

 
   On 15 Mar 1932 when Neil Aulay was 28, he married Eva Estella Ashley in Halifax, NS. 
  iii. Sarah Marain. Born on 2 May 1906 in Glace Bay, Cape Breton, NS. 
  iv. Hunter M. Born in 1908. 
  v. Hector Miles. Born on 6 Apr 1908 in Lantz Siding, NS. Hector Miles died on 23 Feb 

1985; he was 76. 
 
   On 6 Jul 1939 when Hector Miles was 31, he married Annie May MacIntyre in Sydney, 

Cape Breton, NS. Born in 1917 in Catalone, Cape Breton. 
  vi. Eliza Margaret. Born on 13 Mar 1910 in Lantz Siding, NS. Eliza Margaret died on 26 

Mar 1978; she was 68. Buried in Lochend Cemetery, Catalone, Cape Breton. 
 
   On 14 Mar 1930 when Eliza Margaret was 20, she married William Malcolm John 

MacAulay in Sydney, Cape Breton, NS. Born on 3 May 1896 in Catalone, Cape Breton. 
William Malcolm John died in Milford Station, Hants Co., NS, on 3 May 1956; he was 
60. 

 
84c. Christie Ann Woodworth (Catherine McDougall Archibald3, Christiana MacDougal2, John1). Born on 3 Apr 
1868 in Milford Station, Hants Co., NS. Christie Ann died in Halifax NS, on 27 Apr 1932; she was 64. 
 
On 27 Sep 1888 when Christie Ann was 20, she first married George William Bayers, son of John Bayer (1832-
1906) & Alexandrina Bayer (1830-22 Jul 1927), in Milford Station, Hants Co., NS. Born on 7 Feb 1859. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Eliza I. Born in 1890 in Halifax NS. 
  ii. Charles Walter. Born on 30 Mar 1893 in Musquodoboit Harbour, NS. Charles Walter 

died in Dartmouth, Nova Scotia, on 4 Dec 1968; he was 75. 
 
   On 26 Oct 1921 when Charles Walter was 28, he married Mabel Gertrude Dauphinee in 

Hackett’s Cove, Halifax Co., NS. Born in 1891. Mabel Gertrude died in 1985; she was 
94. 

  iii. Jessie Winnifred. Born in Oct 1896. 
 
   On 31 Oct 1917 when Jessie Winnifred was 21, she married Glenroy Clyde Mosher in 

Dartmouth, N.S. Born on 27 Aug 1893 in Musquodoboit Harbour, NS. Glenroy Clyde 
died in New Glasgow, NS, on 24 Mar 1950; he was 56. 

 
   s/o Jacob Mosher and Amelia Annie Cole 
 
 
In 1908 when Christie Ann was 39, she second married Samuel Clifford Bayers, son of John Bayer (1832-1906) 
& Alexandrina Bayer (1830-22 Jul 1927), in Halifax NS. Born on 4 Jun 1870 in Musquodoboit Harbour, NS. 
 
84d. Eliza Margaret Woodworth (Catherine McDougall Archibald3, Christiana MacDougal2, John1). Born on 3 
Dec 1878 in Barneys Brook, NS. Eliza Margaret died in Lantz, NS, on 26 Oct 1965; she was 86. 
 
Eliza Margaret married Hector D. Miller. Born on 16 Oct 1874 in Northfield, Hants Co., NS. Hector D. died in 
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Lantz, NS, on 14 Jun 1966; he was 91. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Charles T. Born on 29 Oct 1899 in Northfield, Hants Co., NS. Charles T. died in Lantz, 

NS, on 2 Jun 1971; he was 71. 
 
   On 22 Jul 1920 when Charles T. was 20, he married Flora Melvina Green in Lantz, NS. 

Born in 1900. Flora Melvina died in 1962; she was 62. 
  ii. Mildred Mae. Born on 17 May 1901 in Barney’s Brook, Hants Co. Mildred Mae died in 

Halifax NS, on 22 May 1999; she was 98. Buried in Sand Hill Cemetery, Nine Mile 
River. In 1925 when Mildred Mae was 23, she married Percy William Ashley in Halifax 
NS. Born in 1896. Percy William died in 1975; he was 79. They had one child: Laurie 
Robert. Born on 21 Mar 1931 in Lantz Siding, NS. Laurie Robert died on 14 Jan 2000; 
he was 68. Buried in Sand Hill Cemetery, Nine Mile River. Headstone “Mr. A. Love, 
Your Kids, Valerie, Beverly, Wendy and William.” On 6 Jul 1956 when Laurie Robert 
was 25, he married Nola Jean Brooks. Born on 26 Jun 1936 in Cardston, Alberta. Nola 
Jean died in Lethbridge, AB, on 17 Jun 2018; she was 81. They had one child: Wendy 
Elizabeth. Born on 13 Dec 1962 in Cardston, Alberta. Wendy Elizabeth died in Kelowna, 
BC, on 24 Aug 2016; she was 53. 

  iii. Austin. Born on 15 Jan 1903 in Northfield, Hants Co., NS. Austin died in Lantz, NS, on 
3 Apr 1968; he was 65. 

 
   On 30 Jun 1926 when Austin was 23, he married Jacqueline Woodworth, daughter of 6. 

John H. Woodworth (16 Jan 1863-4 May 1944) & Elta E. Hines (2 Mar 1881-14 Aug 
1942), in Stewiacke, Col. Co., NS. Born on 10 Jan 1909 in Barney’s Brook, Hants Co. 
Jacqueline died in Lantz, NS, on 20 Feb 1999; she was 90. 

 
 

Family of Robert Logan Guild (48) & Amelia Caldwell 
 
 

85. Roberta Amelia Guild (Robert Logan4, Mary MacInnes Logan3, Jannet MacInnes2, Miles1). Born in 1899 in 
Ellershouse, Hants Co., NS. Roberta Amelia died in 1973; she was 74. 
 
Daughter of Robert Logan Guild of Musquodoboit and Amelia Maud Caldwell 
 
On 10 Sep 1921 when Roberta Amelia was 22, she married Hiram Anderson Archibald, son of Hiram Davison 
Archibald (27 Jan 1859-27 Nov 1934) & Martha Ann (Mimmie) McMullen (1 Jul 1865-6 Jun 1943), in 
Ellershouse, Hants Co., NS. Born on 16 Aug 1899 in Hartsville, Hants Co., NS. Hiram Anderson died on 8 Apr 
1952; he was 52. Buried in Oak Hill Cemetery, Ellershouse, NS. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Barbara Amelia. Born on 29 Jan 1923. 
  ii. Hiram David (Died as Infant). Born on 27 Sep 1925 in Ellershouse, Hants Co., NS. 

Hiram David died in Ellershouse, Hants Co., NS, on 1 Jun 1927; he was 1. 
  iii. Herman Reid. Born on 12 Jan 1931 in Ellershouse, Hants Co., NS. Herman Reid died in 

Halifax NS, on 15 Jan 2010; he was 79. 
 
   Herman Reid Archibald, age 79, of Camp Hill Veterans Building, Halifax, formerly of 

Ellershouse, Hants County, passed away on Friday, January 15th, 2010, in the Halifax 
Infirmary, Q.E.II, Halifax. Born on January 12th, 1931, in Ellershouse, Hants County, 
Nova Scotia, he was the son of the late Hiram and Roberta (Guild) Archibald. Herman 
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served in the Korean War. He worked as a crane operator and construction foreman 
before retiring. Herman is survived by his wife, the former Myrtle Mitchell; his 
daughters, Elizabeth (Capt. Kevin) Flynn, Houston, Texas; Roberta Archibald (Gerald 
Sanford), Brooklyn; Heather (Cameron) Burgess, St. Croix; his son, Robert Archibald, 
Ellershouse; grandchildren, Jason Archibald (Sharon Longmire), Maggie (Barry) 
Macumber, Kacie Davison (Adam Shaw), Lexie Burgess, Ethan Burgess (Jessica Curry), 
Mitchell Archibald, Isaac Archibald, and Robyn Archibald; 5 great- grandchildren; sister-
in-law, Aly Archibald, Sackville; several nieces and nephews. Besides his parents, Hiram 
and Roberta (Guild) Archibald; he was predeceased by brothers, Hiram Archibald and 
Wray Archibald; his sister, Barbara Brown. Interment was in Oakhill Cemetery, 
Ellershouse, Hants County. 

 
   Herman Reid married Myrtle Henrietta Mitchell. Born on 4 May 1936 in Ardoise, Nova 

Scotia. Myrtle Henrietta died in Windsor, Nova Scotia, on 13 Jul 2016; she was 80. 
 
   Myrtle Henrietta Archibald, age 80, Windsor/Ellershouse, Hants County, passed away on 

Wednesday, July 13, 2016, at the Dykeland Lodge, Windsor, surrounded by her family. 
Born on May 4, 1936, in Ardoise, Hants County, Nova Scotia, she was the daughter of 
the late Robert “Bob” and Lexie (Harvey) Mitchell. Myrtle is survived by her children, 
Elizabeth (Captain Kevin) Flynn, Falmouth; Roberta (Gerald Sanford), Brooklyn; Robert, 
Ellershouse; Heather (Cameron) Burgess, St Croix; grandchildren, Jason Archibald 
(Sharon Longmire); Maggie Davison; Kacie Davison (Adam Shaw); Lexie Burgess-
Misner (Raymond); Ethan Burgess; Mitchell Archibald; Isaac Archibald; Robyn 
Archibald; 9 great-grandchildren, David, Hannah, Marcus, Mikayla, Ella, Gretchen, Taya, 
Fifi and Quinn; sisters, Frances Lyttle, Ellershouse; Freda Rockwell, Newport Corner; 
Mickie Cochrane, Windsor; and Thelma (Dale) Cochrane, Windsor; brother, Bobby 
(Elva) Mitchell, Shubenacadie; sister-in-law, Liz Mitchell, Halifax; numerous nieces and 
nephews. Besides her parents, Myrtle was predeceased by her husband, Herman Reid 
Archibald (2010); brother, Merton “Fud” Mitchell; sister, Evelyn Robicheau; brothers-in-
law, Gerald Rockwell; Lyman Lyttle; Wray Archibald; Hiram Archibald; sister-in-law, 
Barbara Brown. A private family interment will be held in the Oakhill Cemetery, 
Ellershouse. 

  iv. Wray Gordon. Born on 3 Mar 1932. Wray Gordon died in 1989; he was 56. Buried in 
Oak Hill Cemetery, Ellershouse, NS. 

 
 

Family of Malcolm Taylor (50) & Mary Ellen Bates 
 
 

86. Cora Jane Taylor (Malcolm4, Hannah Christiana Logan3, Jannet MacInnes2, Miles1). Born on 22 Jan 1881 in 
Middle Musquodoboit, NS. 
 
Cora Jane married William Arthur Reid, son of Alexander James Reid (10 Jan 1854-6 Nov 1938) & Elizabeth 
Guild. Born on 9 Apr 1883. William Arthur died on 26 Feb 1956; he was 72. 
 
s/o Alexander J. Reid and Bessie Guild 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Helen Bertha. Born on 24 Aug 1906. 
 
   Helen Bertha married Stanley Nelson Jackson. 
  ii. Della Mae. Born on 30 May 1908. 
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   Della Mae married William Jackson. 
  iii. Dorothy Alberta. Born on 15 Aug 1910. 
 
   Dorothy Alberta married Thomas James Sanderson. 
  iv. Alexander Malcolm. Born on 22 Nov 1911. 
 
   Alexander Malcolm married Vera Edith Merritt. 
  v. Violet Bessie. Born on 18 Sep 1913 in Consort, AB. Violet Bessie died on 10 May 1946; 

she was 32. 
 
   Violet Bessie married Lyle Vail. 
  vi. Gordon Douglas. 
 
   Gordon Douglas first married Hazel Lillian Sheilds. 
 
   Gordon Douglas second married Jean Alice Collins. 
  vii. Mary Louise. 
 
   Mary Louise married Richard C. Hannah. 
  viii. John Harold. 
 
   John Harold married Lorraine Tournier. 
 
 

Family of William Charles Logan (53) & Jessie Layton McKenzie 
 
 

87. Arthur Earle Logan (William Charles4, Robert Archibald3, Jannet MacInnes2, Miles1). Born on 11 Sep 1893. 
Arthur Earle died on 2 Aug 1965; he was 71. 
 
On 25 Apr 1925 when Arthur Earle was 31, he married Gerta McCurdy. Born on 24 Apr 1900. 
 
d/o Robert Sedgewick McCurdy and Frances Mary Oats Morris. (B. K. Jennings) 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Jessie Frances. 
 
   Jessie Frances married Reginald Higgins. 
 
   s/o Suther Higgins and Ida Prest (B. K. Jennings) 
  ii. Eva Margaret. 
 
   Eva Margaret married Herbert McDonald. 
 

Family of Charles Allen McInnes (77) & Mary Ann Conway 
 
 

114. Edward McInnes (Charles Allen4, Miles MacInnes3, Malcolm2, Miles1). Born on 25 Apr 1883 in Manhattan, 
New York, USA. 
 
On 28 May 1903 when Edward was 20, he married Sarah Meadowcroft in Manhattan, New York, USA. Born in 
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1885. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Edward. Born on 17 Jul 1905 in Manhattan, New York, USA. Edward died in Lynbrook, 

Nassau, New York, in Mar 1981; he was 75. 
  ii. Ethel. Born in 1911. 
 
115. Agnes Cecelia McInnes (Charles Allen4, Miles MacInnes3, Malcolm2, Miles1). Born on 17 Apr 1885 in 
Manhattan, New York, USA. Agnes Cecelia died in Culver City, Los Angeles, CA, on 24 Jun 1961; she was 76. 
 
On 26 Jun 1907 when Agnes Cecelia was 22, she married Francis Atherton Johnston in Manhattan, New York, 
USA. Born in 1886. Francis Atherton died in 1952; he was 66. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Hunt M. Born in 1908. 
  ii. Mary V. Born in 1912. 
  iii. Edward A. Born on 13 May 1912 in Littleton, Halifax, North Carolina. Edward A. died 

in Apr 1958; he was 45. 
  iv. Agnes Arline. Born on 17 Jun 1913 in Littleton, Halifax, North Carolina. Agnes Arline 

died in Anaheim, CA, on 9 Apr 2007; she was 93. 
 
   Agnes Arline married Jose Benigno Mayo. Born on 17 May 1899 in Lima, Peru. Jose 

Benigno died in Anaheim, CA, on 29 Dec 1974; he was 75. 
  v. Frances Cecelia. Born in 1916. 
 
 

Family of Matilda S. MacInnes (78) & William F. Bannister 
 
 

116. Alfred F. Bannister (Matilda S. MacInnes4, Miles3, Malcolm2, Miles1). Born on 12 Feb 1896 in Boston, Mass. 
Alfred Francis died in Boston, Mass., on 1 Nov 1970; he was 74. Buried in Blue Hill Cemetery, Braintree. 
 
Bannister, In Dorchester, Nov. 1, Alfred F., beloved husband of Catherine A. (Cadigan), devoted father of William 
F. of Braintree, brother of Franklin A. of Braintree, Mrs. Ruth Dellahunt of Wollaston, Mrs. Dorothy Douglass of 
Milton; also survived by four grandchildren.  Retired member of the Boston Police Department, St. Brendan’s Holy 
Name Society, Boston Police Relief Association and the Boston Police Post, VFW and veteran of WW1. 
 
On 28 Oct 1923 when Alfred Francis was 27, he first married Katherine Helen Nolan in Suffolk, MA. Born in 
1898. Katherine Helen died in 1948; she was 50. 
 
They had one child: 
  i. William Francis. Born on 24 Oct 1924 in Boston, Mass. William Francis died on 10 

May 2018; he was 93. Buried in Mass. National Cemetery, Bourne. 
 
   BANNISTER, William F. Of Braintree, passed away on May 10, 2018. Bill grew up in 

Dorchester, but has been a resident of Braintree for the past 67 years. A recipient of the 
Purple heart, Bill was a proud veteran of the US Army at the Battle of the Bulge in WW 
II. He was also a graduate of Bentley College. Bill loved being around his family, 
listening to music from the Big Band Era and driving to Florida with his late wife Dottie 
during their retirement years. He loved being home, working around his yard and sitting 
by the pool enjoying his family and friends. Bill will be dearly missed by all those who 
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knew and loved him. Adoring husband, of 65 years, to the late Dorothy L. (Donovan). 
Loving father of Bill Bannister and his wife, Jackie, of North Andover, Carol A. Fleming 
and her husband, Andy, of Medford, Susan Bannister Fabbri of Andover, and Bobby 
Bannister and his wife, Heather, of Pembroke. Cherished Grampy to his 13 grandchildren 
and 6 great grandchildren. 

 
   William Francis married Dorothy L. Donovan. Born in 1930. Dorothy L. died on 10 Aug 

2016; she was 86. Buried in Mass. National Cemetery, Bourne. 
 
   Dorothy L. (Donovan) Bannister of Braintree, died August 10, 2016. Beloved wife of 65 

years to William F. Bannister of Braintree, she was the devoted mother of Bill Bannister 
and his wife Jackie of North Andover, Carol Fleming and her husband Andrew of 
Medford, Susan Fabbri of Andover and Bobby Bannister and his wife Heather of 
Pembroke; loving sister of the late Frank Donovan; cherished Nana to 13 grandchildren 
and 6 great-grandchildren. Dot was the ultimate homemaker, taking great pride in her 
family and her home. She was dedicated to children of all ages and abilities and took 
much pleasure in teaching many to swim. Dot will be dearly missed. 

 
 
In 1951 when Alfred Francis was 54, he second married Catherine Cadigan. 
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Archibald  
 Ann child of 10 
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 Eliza child of 10 
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 Herman Reid child of 85 
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 Hiram David child of 85 
 Hiram Davison parent of spouse of 85 
 Hugh parent of spouse of 10 
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 Esther child of 40 
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Conrod  
 Edith Harriet spouse of 79 
Conway  
 Mary Ann spouse of 77 
Cook  
 Agnes Pitt spouse of 11 
Creelman  
 Mary parent of spouse of 16 
Cruickshank  
 Alexander spouse of 8 
 Alexandrina child of 8 
 Alonzo J. child of 20 
 Amanda child of 22 
 Andrew J. child of 24 
 Angus J. child of 23 
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 Christiana child of 8 
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 Clarence S. child of 23 
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 Isabelle "Belle" parent of spouse of 26 
 Isabelle "Belle" parent of spouse of 28 
 James spouse of 4 
 James Angus 24 
 James Merklin parent of spouse of 8 
 Jeanette child of 8 
 Jennie Marshall child of 21 
 Jennie Sarah child of 8 
 John parent of spouse of 4 
 John Allen 20 
 Laura Frances child of 20 
 Lida E. child of 23 
 Lillie M. child of 20 
 Louis Watson child of 22 
 Lulu Freeman child of 20 
 Margaret child of 4 
 Mary child of 24 
 Mary Francis child of 21 
 Mary Gordon child of 8 
 Miles child of 8 
 Miles McInnes 23 
 Orren Wallace child of 20 
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 Ralph August child of 24 
 Runald 21 
 Shirley child of 24 
 Wilbur Ronald child of 21 
 William 22 
 William child of 21 
 William Hays child of 24 
 William James child of 8 
Cruickshanks  
 Alexander James 44 
 George Alexander child of 44 
 Richard Sherwin child of 44 
 Sarah Louise child of 44 
Currie  
 Ellaphallia spouse of 6 
Dechman  
 Andrew Creelman child of 16 
 Arthur child of 16 
 Ethel Parker child of 52 
 Florence May child of 52 
 John Grant parent of spouse of 16 
 John Grant spouse of 16 
 John Grant 52 
 Leonara Mary child of 16 
 Lottie Ellen child of 52 
 Robert Archibald child of 16 
 William James child of 16 
Deyarmond  
 Olivia parent of spouse of 80 
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 Christiana child of 5 
 Eleazer (Lee) Curtis child of 5 
 Hannah Ann child of 5 
 Janet child of 5 
 Miles MacInnes child of 5 
 Ranald "Byers" child of 5  
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 Alexander parent of spouse of 14 
 Alexander parent of spouse of 26 
 Alexander parent of spouse of 28 
 Alexanderina spouse of 28 
 Catherine spouse of 14 
 Eliza Ann spouse of 26 
 Esther spouse of 7 
 Isabelle spouse of 51 
 John parent of spouse of 7 
 Peter parent of spouse of 51 
Fitzpatrick  
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 Lillian spouse of 84 
Freeman  
 Phebe Mariah spouse of 20 
Gladwin  
 Mary Elizabeth Ann spouse of 17 
Gordon  
 Elizabeth parent of spouse of 8 
Guild  
 Christiana parent of spouse of 9 
 Elizabeth parent of spouse of 86 
 Elizabeth child of 12 
 Hannah Price child of 12 
 Jennet L. child of 12 
 Margaret Ann child of 12 
 Mary Logan child of 12 
 Robert Anderson spouse of 12 
 Robert Logan 48 
 Roberta Amelia 85 
 Samuel Braden Logan child of 12 
 Susanna Elliot child of 12 
 Thomas H. child of 12 
 William parent of spouse of 12 
 William child of 12 
Hale  
 Alice M. child of 41 
 Ida Locke child of 41 
 William A. spouse of 41 
Hall  
 Anna spouse of 54 
Hallett  
 Ada Bell spouse of 76 
Higgins  
 Esther Scott spouse of 18 
 George parent of spouse of 18 
Holman  
 Lydia Jane spouse of 52 
 Wiliam parent of spouse of 52 
Innes  
 Charlotte parent of spouse of 51 
Johnson  
 Kate spouse of 49 
Johnston  
 Agnes Arline child of 115 
 Edward A. child of 115 
 Frances Cecelia child of 115 
 Francis Atherton spouse of 115 
 Hunt M. child of 115 
 Mary V. child of 115 
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Kent  
 Adella child of 9 
 Adella child of 46 
 Amanda child of 9 
 Annie child of 46 
 Annie child of 9 
 Christiana “Melissa” 45 
 Eliza Emmeline child of 9 
 Emma L. child of 46 
 Frank Robert child of 46 
 Guy Wellington child of 46 
 Helena Mae child of 46 
 James parent of spouse of 9 
 James “Edgar” child of 9 
 James Edgar child of 46 
 Jane Abigail child of 46 
 Josephone L. child of 46 
 Samuel Wellington 46 
 Sidney D. child of 46 
 Wellington spouse of 9 
Leslie  
 Eleanor Terresia spouse of 47 
Livingston  
 Emma child of 45 
 Francis W. child of 45 
 James K. child of 45 
 Lewis Henry Selden child of 45 
 Margaret Adela child of 45 
 William Wise spouse of 45 
Lockhart  
 Alexander Coleman spouse of 82 
 Edith Louise child of 82 
Logan  
 Alexander child of 14 
 Alfred Logan 54 
 Angus McInnes 17 
 Annie Currie child of 19 
 Arlando Norman child of 15 
 Arthur Earle 87 
 Bertha child of 51 
 Bessie child of 17 
 Blanche child of 51 
 Clarence Pryor child of 53 
 Clarence Stanley child of 47 
 E. Hervey child of 47 
 Edgar T. child of 15 
 Edward R. child of 3 
 Edwin child of 19 
 Eleanor child of 17 
 Eva Margaret child of 87 
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 Fannie Maud child of 19 
 Flydia child of 14 
 Francis Joseph child of 47 
 Georgina child of 17 
 Gertrude child of 47 
 Hannah Christiana 13 
 Henry child of 17 
 Hervey Dix child of 15 
 James Ross child of 19 
 Jean Alma child of 54 
 Jessie B. child of 11 
 Jessie Frances child of 87 
 Jessie Margery child of 47 
 Leander child of 11 
 Leonora child of 17 
 Lidia Marie child of 51 
 Lloyd Hall child of 54 
 Malcolm McInnis 19 
 Margaret child of 51 
 Margaret Ann 16 
 Mary MacInnes 12 
 May Eileen child of 54 
 Miles H. child of 47 
 Miles McInnis 11 
 Ralph child of 51 
 Robert Archibald spouse of 3 
 Robert Archibald 18 
 Robert Archibald child of 53 
 Robert John 47 
 Samuel Braden 15 
 Samuel Miles child of 15 
 Vida M. child of 47 
 William parent of spouse of 3 
 William 14 
 William 51 
 William Charles 53 
MacDonald  
 Angus  (VIII) parent of spouse of 1 
 Catherine parent of spouse of 2 
 Christiana spouse of 1 
MacDougal  
 Alexander child of 2 
 Alexander parent of spouse of 2 
 Catherine child of 2 
 Christiana 10 
 John spouse of 2 
MacInnes  
 Adrinda child of 7 
 Agnes Lena 38 
 Alexander child of 7 
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 Alexanderina 5 
 Alfred 32 
 Alfred child of 7 
 Alfred Freeman child of 76 
 Alverias child of 33 
 Angus child of 1 
 Angus 37 
 Annie B. child of 33 
 Annie “Marion” child of 31 
 Ann/Nancy 2 
 Aubrey George child of 81 
 Barbara Ann 36 
 Christiana 8 
 Edith Lucy child of 32 
 Edna Violet child of 76 
 Edward child of 33 
 Eliza Ann 9 
 Eliza Ann 41 
 Ellaphallie Curry child of 31 
 Emma 42 
 Emma Louisa child of 34 
 Esther Sophia child of 37 
 Eva Phaelia Cecilia child of 75 
 Freda Meredith child of 79 
 Frederick Charles child of 34 
 George Evans child of 34 
 George Malcolm 81 
 George Rawlings child of 7 
 Harold (Harry) Frederick child of 31 
 Henry Walter child of 34 
 Isabel child of 7 
 Isabella Jane child of 7 
 James Baker child of 6 
 James “Rupert” 76 
 Jannet 3 
 Jannet child of 7 
 Jean child of 79 
 Jennett J. child of 33 
 John 34 
 John child of 35 
 John Alfred 79 
 Lenora Alice child of 35 
 Leonora Janet 39 
 Lillian child of 76 
 Lillie child of 35 
 Maggie D. 43 
 Malcolm 7 
 Malcolm 35 
 Malcolm Taylor child of 80 
 Margaret “Grace” child of 31 
 Mary 4 
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 Mary Elen 40 
 Mary “Lillian” child of 32 
 Matilda “Louise” 82 
 Matilda S. 78 
 Melvin child of 33 
 Mildred Beatrice child of 76 
 Miles 1 
 Miles 33 
 Norman 80 
 Norman 75 
 Ranald 6 
 Ronald 31 
 Sarah child of 37 
 Sarah J. child of 33 
 William James child of 7 
 William Rufus child of 34 
MacLeod  
 Catherine parent of spouse of 1 
Marshall  
 Julia Ann spouse of 21 
Mason  
 Isabel parent of spouse of 7 
McCurdy  
 Gerta spouse of 87 
McDonald  
 Sarah D. parent of spouse of 50 
McHeffey  
 Carrie spouse of 31 
McInnes  
 Agnes Cecelia 115 
 Alvariaz M. child of 77 
 Charles child of 77 
 Charles Allen 77 
 Edward 114 
 Edward child of 114 
 Ethel child of 114 
 Florence child of 77 
 Jane child of 77 
 Mary child of 77 
 William child of 77 
McIntosh  
 Jane spouse of 33 
McKenzie  
 Jessie Layton spouse of 53 
McLeod  
 Margaret Amelia spouse of 23 
McMullen  
 Martha Ann (Mimmie) parent of spouse of 85 
McNabb  
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 Marion spouse of 19 
McQuinn  
 Jane A. spouse of 46 
Meadowcroft  
 Sarah spouse of 114 
Nyman  
 Jemima Elizabeth spouse of 15 
Ogilvie  
 Alice parent of spouse of 35 
Olgilvie  
 Jane Hawthorne parent of spouse of 7 
Pace  
 Clifford Sylvester child of 39 
 Elijah S. spouse of 39 
 June Irene child of 39 
 Lester Welsford child of 39 
 Percy Elsmore child of 39 
Porter  
 Matilda parent of spouse of 38 
Redmond  
 Rebecca Dunn parent of spouse of 52 
Reid  
 Alexander James parent of spouse of 86 
 Alexander Malcolm child of 86 
 Della Mae child of 86 
 Dorothy Alberta child of 86 
 Gordon Douglas child of 86 
 Helen Bertha child of 86 
 John Harold child of 86 
 Mary Louise child of 86 
 Violet Bessie child of 86 
 William Arthur spouse of 86 
Rhind  
 Isabel spouse of 7 
Scallion  
 Anna Blanche spouse of 75 
Scott  
 Agnes Pitt parent of spouse of 18 
Seeton  
 Andrew parent of spouse of 38 
 Charles E. child of 83 
 David spouse of 38 
 Edward Malcolm 84 
 Eleanor child of 83 
 Frederick Everett child of 84 
 James parent of spouse of 37 
 John H. child of 83 
 Leonard Everett 83 
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 Leonard Tribble child of 83 
 Malcolm Wesley child of 84 
 Martha spouse of 37 
Shaw  
 Alexander parent of spouse of 7 
 Jane (Jean) spouse of 7 
Simensky  
 Michael spouse of 150 
Simpson  
 Helen parent of spouse of 13 
Stevenson  
 Gertrude spouse of 46 
Stuart  
 Albert Isaac spouse of 36 
 Leonara Annie child of 36 
Swan  
 Matilda spouse of 22 
Taylor  
 Alexander George spouse of 57 
 Ansel Churchill child of 57 
 Cora Jane 86 
 Donald child of 49 
 Edward S. child of 13 
 Edward Simpson spouse of 13 
 Elizabeth Helena child of 13 
 Ernest child of 49 
 Ernest child of 49 
 Esther child of 13 
 Frank child of 13 
 George parent of spouse of 13 
 George child of 13 
 Georginia spouse of 80 
 Grace Alma child of 57 
 Harry Neil child of 49 
 Harvie Lemont child of 57 
 Joseph Peart 49 
 Lexie L. child of 57 
 Malcolm 50 
 Miles child of 13 
 Peter parent of spouse of 80 
 Ross child of 49 
 Warren Johnson child of 49 
Tribble  
 Abigail spouse of 83 
Turner  
 Frank William spouse of 42 
 Frank William Jr. child of 42 
Weatherby  
 Ruth parent of spouse of 5 
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Whitman  
 Sarah A. spouse of 32 
Wright  
 Frances Sophia parent of spouse of 37 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-------------------------------------------------- 
H. Douglas Goff 
7748 Wellington Road 22 
Guelph, ON, N1H 6J2 
Canada 
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Appendix 1: Angus MacDonald and Catherine MacLeod 
 

1. Angus  (VIII) MacDonald, son of John (VII) MacDonald & Ann MacDonald. Born in Griminish, North Uist, 
Scotland. Angus  (VIII) died in Meaghers Grant, NS in 1802. 
 
Angus MacDonald,  VIII  of Griminish of Scotland, North Carolina &  Nova Scotia 
by Flo Dickey, Tucson, AZ 
  
Angus and his brother Archibald, the sons of John MacDonald, VII of Griminish and Ann MacDonald of 
Balivqueen, appear about the same time as 'on record as of Griminish and Scolpig’. 
    
Tradition tells that Angus of Griminish, evidently on his succeeding his father, was hoodwinked into a scheme of 
emigration by several of the North Uist gentlemen, who pretended that they were to cross the seas to America.  
   
Angus is said to have been masterful and domineering and his neighbors devised this somewhat dubious plan to get 
him out of the country.  Be this as it may, Angus alone made genuine preparations for the voyage to America while 
the others kept up the deception to the very end by sending packing cases laden with peats and other similar contents 
to the port of embarkation.   
 
At first, Angus was taken in by this ruse; but afterwards, when it was too late he sailed for the new world.  Angus, 
having given up the tenure of Griminish for the new world, his brother Archibald came into possession as tacksman 
of Griminish.  
 
A poem by John MacCodum, the North Uist poet, bemoans the emigration.  But the poem states that Angus was a 
man of considerable wealth, nobility and much stature in North Uist. 
 
Angus was living in Griminish prior to his father’s death in 1765 and was then on record as Angus of Griminish.  
One could assume that Angus went to America after his father's death in 1765.  It is said he did not find a congenial 
home in the new world and returned to Scotland before 1769.  However circumstances change and he returned to 
America and settled in North Carolina with his wife and some of his children in December 1773. Angus was married 
when he went to America the first time and his wife, Catherine stayed with her parent's family on the Isle of Skye 
during his absence as three of their daughters were born on the Isle of Skye; Mary born 1767 and Christiania 
"Christy" born 1769 and Catherine born 1773. 
 
In the later part of 1773, Angus and his family set sail for North Carolina and arrived in December of 1773.  Also on 
the same voyage in 1773  were three young neighbors and cousins of Angus' from Knockline in North Uist.  They 
were Marion, Janet, and Augus, children of Donald MacDonald.  These young people came over as servents to pay 
for their passage. They were just a few of the many Highlanders that left their homeland for the new world.  The 
following story relates the reasons for this move. 
 
In 1746, following the Battle of Culloden, the Parliament of Britain passed some harsh laws to abolish the Highland 
Clans. The use of the tartans and the wearing of kilts were prohibited.  These measures were endorsed by the 
occupying army.  Local government thereafter was to be by Government appointed officials.  No Highlander was 
allowed to own any arms.  All this meant was that the clan chief would have no further use for the tacksmen except 
as tenants.  A clan could survive only so long as the chief adhered to the ancient principles and they all had a 
perfectly valid legal right to lay those principles aside and rent the land for the best price it would bring.  Sooner or 
later every clan chief adopted the new order of things.  The tacksmen did not like it.  They were as equally 
determined to emigrate rather than accept the new law. 
 
This is what happened in the case of our Skye and Uist MacDonalds.  In 1746 Sir Alexander of Sleat, the  Chief, 
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died the same year of the new laws.  His oldest son, James, was a minor.  Old Kingsburg was his tutor.  James was 
given a good education, and when he took over the reins, he had not the remotest idea of doing differently from the 
long established custom.  Every clansmen loved him and it was reciprocal.  But Sir James died in 1766 at the age of 
26 and unmarried.  The next in line to inherit the chiefship was the next brother, Alexander.  He had been educated 
in London, and perhaps no thought had been given to the possibility that he might some day be chief.  He began to 
rent his land for the best price he could get regardless of kinship. As rapidly as leases expired the tacksmen were to 
pay higher rents or leave and leave they did. There was propaganda widely circulated that greatly hurt the pride of 
the tacksmen, to the effect that they were robbing the chiefs with one hand and the poor people with the other. Dr. 
Johnson discusses this at length in "The Tour of the Hebrides."  
 
In 1759 a regiment was raised on the estates of Sir James MacDonald, and led by Montgomery, a brother of the 
mother of Sir James.  In order to enlist the Highlanders, Prime Minister William Pitt decided to allow them  to 
organize pure Highland regiments and permit them to wear kilts and be led by their own officers. Fourteen hundred 
men volunteered and officers were commissioned. They first saw action in New York and Pennsylvania  and by 
1761 a report came in that the Cherokees were molesting the western Carolinas.  Montgomery, with 700 of these 
men, went to the Carolinas for about a year.  Returning north they were discharged at the end of the French and 
Indian War of 1763.  They were offered free land if they wanted to settle in America, or passage if they wanted to go 
home.  But this group of MacDonald men returned to Skye and Uist.  Naturally these men would learn a lot about 
the country during their stay in the Carolinas and tell about it back in Skye. 
 
In 1771, James MacDonald of Heisker, Hugh  "One-eye"  MacDonald of Armadale, and several other MacDonalds 
applied for a grant of 40,000 acres of public land in North Carolina for themselves and their families. 
 
In 1772, Hugh was back in North Carolina and bought land on Mountain Creek and returned to Skye and was there 
in October 1773 to ferry Johnson and Boswell to Mull and returned to North Carolina in 1774 to build a grist mill 
for the new settlers.  In other words the clan was about to move its place of abode, and as Johnson expresses it, carry 
along their kindred, their customs, their language, etc. and "change nothing but their place of abode and of that they 
see the advantage."  
  
In December 1773, Angus, his wife Catherine and five children arrived in North Carolina and settled immediately 
on land transferred to him by Alexander MacDonald, 5th of Cuidreach.  In the later part of 1774, arrivals from Skye 
included Flora MacDonald and her husband, Alan MacDonald of Kingsburgh, their sons, Alexander, and James and 
their daughter Anne and her husband, Alexander MacLeod of Dunvegan, Isle of Skye; also Donald MacDonald son 
of Alexander MacDonald, 5th of Cuidreach and Miles MacInnes. Three young neighbors of Angus, from Knockline 
in North Uist came on the same passage with Angus to America in 1773.  They were Marion and Janet daughters of 
Angus MacDonald and their cousin Augus, son of Donald  MacDonald a relative. These young people came over as 
servents to pay for their passage. 
 
Angus MacDonald had purchased several other tracts of land and by the time the Highlanders were mobilized at 
Cross Creek in February, 1776, he owned a total of 1861 acres.  He received a commission as Captain from the 
governor of North Carolina and was in command of his company when taken prisoner at Moore's Creek Bridge, 
February 27, 1776. 
 
Miles MacInnes, Flora MacDonald, her husband Allen of Kingsburgh, their sons Alexander and James, a daughter 
Ann and son in law Alexander MacLeod, Donald MacDonald (son of Alexander 5th of Cuidreach) all arrived in 
Anson County in 1774, most likely on the ship "Cato" arrived from Scotland carrying 312 Highlanders, in December 
of 1774, all from the Isle of Skye (Port of Brunswick Record Book).  They settled in the Cape Fear basin where their 
relatives had settled a year earlier. 
 
The nearest villages were Cross Creek and Campbelltown, which were merged about 1778 under the name of 
Campbelltown which was changed to Fayetteville in 1783.   
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Soon after their arrival trouble began in New England between the British and the American colonies.  Two Scottish 
officers of the British Army were sent to North Carolina to organize a regiment of Highlanders to help support the 
British cause.  They were Major Donald MacDonald and Captain Donald MacLeod, cousins of our descendants in 
North Carolina.  
 
Many of the Scottish settlers in North Carolina were born in America or had become Americanized and favored the 
Yankee cause.  Some wanted to remain neutral as they knew the treatment they or their parents had received from 
the English troops in Scotland when they had gone against the English government in the Rising of 1745.  Those 
who arrived only a few years before 1775 were not free to make a choice as they had taken an oath of loyality prior 
to their arrival in America.  These newly arrived Scots, our ancestors, had lost so much in Scotland, they did not 
want to risk losing all their possessions in this new homeland.  Most of the newcomers still had family back in Skye 
and feared reprisals if they supported the Yankee cause. 
 
The British Government was well aware of this and tried to round up all the Highland men and transport them to 
known loyal territory as soon as possible, before they could be persuaded to join the Yankees.  It was for this reason 
that Major Donald MacDonald and Captain Donald MacLeod were sent to North Carolina.  Flora MacDonald, 
having gone against the British before in helping Bonnie Prince Charles, knew exactly what the repercussions would 
be. Consequently she was very willing to support the British and help persuade her family and friends to do so as 
well.  Soon Major MacDonald, Captain MacLeod and about 1500 men began marching to the sea coast where they 
expected to be taken by ship to Halifax, Nova Scotia for training and arms, then return to Anson County to fight the 
Yankees. They joined the Highland Emigrant Regiment and they wore their tartans and kilts with pride. 
Unfortunately for these Highlanders, less than half were armed and those classed as "armed" had nothing other than 
swords. They were met by a smaller but well armed force of Yankees at a place known as Moore's Creek Bridge 
February 27, 1776.  In the brief battle, Highlanders were outmaneuvered by the highly skilled Americans.  Some 
were killed, including Captain Angus's son, and more than half taken prisoner.  Included among the prisoners were 
Allen MacDonald of Kingsburgh and his two sons, Captain Angus MacDonald, and Lieut. Miles MacInnes.  Since 
there were so many prisoners and not nearly enough Yankees to guard them, the younger men were released.  They 
were told to go home and think about joining the Yankee cause.  Some of the Highland prisoners escaped.   
 
On October 28, 1785, in London, England, Captain Angus MacDonald submitted his claim to the Commission 
appointed by the British Government to settle claims of American Loyalists.  
 
His claim stated that he had resided in North Carolina from December, 1773, until he was taken prisoner by the 
enemy in February of 1776.  He took an active part in the uprising of Highlanders at Cross Creek and was taken 
prisoner February 27, 1776.  He remained a prisoner over two years.  After being released he rejoined the British 
forces and served until "the Peace.."  He submitted a "Schedule" of property losses in North Carolina; lost when his 
possessions were taken or destroyed by the Americans. Angus claimed the loss of 5 tracts of land, each of which 
was operated as a plantation complete with buildings, horses, cattle, hogs, sheep, tools, and equipment.  Two of the 
plantations were equipped with grist mills.  The land areas were all in Cumberland County, in the vicinity of Cranes 
Creek, which is northwest of Fayetteville. The different tracts had areas of 400, 300, 250, 256, and 655 acres, for a 
total area of 1861 acres.  Angus also claimed the loss of 94 sheep, 10 horses, 70 hogs, and 39 cattle.  Several of his 
plantation were rented to tenants. 
 
On October 28, 1785 his case was heard in London.  In sworn testimony, he stated that he arrived in North Carolina 
in December, 1773 and settled at Cranes Creek in February of 1774.  After being captured he was kept in close 
confinement for a year and was then let out on parole. After his release, he joined the British Army in Philadelphia 
in 1777.  He obtained a lieutenancy in the PIONEERS AND GUIDES in 1778.  He was at the siege of Charleston, 
and later Captain in the NORTH CAROLINA HIGHLANDERS and continued with them until the peace.  He went 
from New York to North Carolina to rescue his wife and five children, who had lived on his home estate until they 
were forced to flee, without any possessions, in 1781. 
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From North Carolina, Angus took his family to Nova Scotia, where they lived until he started his voyage to England 
to try to recover his losses.  Angus arrived in London a few days before the hearings, October 20, 1785.  The 
evidence of the hearings shows that he produced a conveyance, dated 1 April 1774, for four tracts of land totaling 
400 acres purchased from Alexander MacDonald.  Alexander MacDonald of Cuidreach, on the Isle of Skye, was 
married to a half sister of Flora MacDonald.  She was a daughter of Flora's mother and her second husband, Captain 
"One-eyed" Hugh MacDonald.  Angus stated that when he arrived in North Carolina he carried over 300 guineas, a 
draft for 1340 guineas, and goods and possessions having a total value of about 700 pounds sterling.  He could not 
produce deeds for the other tracts of land because they had been left in "the office" in North Carolina but he gave the 
following information; 
     300 acre tract purchased from a man named Cameron, 1774 
     250 acre tract purchased from a man named Gilmore, March or April of 1775 
     256 acre tract purchased from a man named Matthews, May 1775.  
     655 acre tract purchased from a man named Bowie. 
He claimed loss of crops totalling 1000 bushels of indian-corn and 150 bushels of wheat.  In 1781, his wife and 
children were forced to leave home without even a "second shift." 
 
A supporting witness to these claims was Captain Alexander Morrison who had known both Captain Alexander and 
Captain Angus MacDonald in Scotland and North Carolina.  He lived eight or nine miles from Angus, in North 
Carolina. He was with them when they made the bargain for the land at Cranes Creek.  He said that Angus 
MacDonald was a man of good character and had brought property into the country. 
 
Another witness, Donald Shaw (son in law of Morrison), had known Angus in America and before, and spoke 
highly of him. 
 
There is nothing in the file to show when a decision was made about the property losses, but there is a document 
showing the following: 
 
#444 Capt.Angus MacDonald 
     His claim for losses (in pounds sterling).....1909 
     Sum originally allowed........................          751 
Revised allowance...........................                  ..915 
     Total payable under Act of Parl..............915-0- 
   Sum already received.........................300-8 
     Final balance due.....................      ........614-12- 
     There was no indication of dates. 
 
Captain Angus MacDonald waited in London for four months without receiving payment.  Angus had given his 
tenure of Griminish to his brother Archibald before leaving for America.  Some time during the waiting period in 
London, Angus returned to his native Uist.  However, he did not go back to his ancestors in Griminish, but resided at 
Balranald, then occupied by his kinsman, Donald MacDonald. 
 
He presented another claim on or soon after, February 17, 1786 asking that some form of aid or temporary support 
be given him until he "might receive compensation for his lost property," and he gave the following reasons; 
 
He had served in the rebellion in America and his wife and family had been forced to remain in the hands of the 
enemy who plundered them of their effects and confiscated all his estate. 
 
Before the evacuation of New York (November, 1783) he returned to North Carolina for his family and took them to 
Nova Scotia "where they are now" and with whom he had remained until he came to England to have his claim 
heard.   Since his arrival in England, he had been examined by the Commissioners for the Loyalist Claims, his claim 
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"amounting in Carolina currency to 3393-17 pounds, equal in Sterling to about 1936-6-4."  He had to refurnish his 
family with clothing, household furniture, and equipment; to purchase tools for farming; "to build a house in the 
wilderness" and,  this, exhausted all his finances and involved him greatly in debt, he having no resources other than 
his half-pay, and "what is still a greater sting to his feelings as a husband, and a father, that for want of means, he is 
unable to go back to his family." 
 
Josiah Martin, who had been governor of North Carolina when Angus lived there, was then in London.  He wrote a 
letter, dated 17 February 1786, supporting the Memorial and recommending that "a temporary aid, or subsistence, be 
awarded to Captain Angus MacDonald to enable him to return to his family in Nova Scotia."  
 
Captain Angus was called for a hearing on February 25, 1786. In the record of that hearing, the following 
information can be found:  
He went to North Carolina, December 1773. 
He raised a company of 250 men and joined Major Donald MacDonald's forces by order of Governor Josiah Martin. 
He had two commissions of Captain; one from Governor Martin and one from Lord Cornwallis. He had half pay as 
Captain. 
After the peace, he went to Nova Scotia with his wife and children.          
He came to England in October 1785. 
His case was heard October 28, 1785, Loss of 1939 pounds Sterling, Intends to return to Nova Scotia at first 
opportunity. 
 
The Commissioners evidently thought it better to send him back home to Nova Scotia than to pay his support in 
London until his claim was paid.  The decision was to pay him 25 pounds "to defray the expense of his return to 
Nova Scotia." 
 
It is assumed that he returned as soon as possible and that the compensation for property losses was paid to him after 
his return to Nova Scotia. Of all the American loyalists named MacDonald who submitted claims to the British 
government for property losses in North Carolina, Captain Angus MacDonald was the one who received the largest 
amount of compensation. With all his land, he probably had slaves but, unlike some of his neighboring claimants, he 
did not submit any claim to the British government for the loss of slaves.  It is probable that when he went back to 
North Carolina, to rescue his wife and children, he also rescued some of his slaves and took them to Nova Scotia, 
with the family.  This would explain the story in Nova Scotia that he brought his wife and family, and slaves to that 
country. 
 
Angus and his family settled in Kennetcook, Hants County, Nova Scotia.  For some reason they spent a lot of time 
on MacNabb's Island, according to an article written, August 10, 1901, by J.D. Bayer, a great grand son of Angus. 
Bayer states that his great grandfather Angus came to Nova Scotia from Florida, where he had a plantation of some 
size and a dozen slaves.  That they originally came from the Isle of Skye and his great grandmother was married 
after the celebrated Flora MacDonald who was married to Allan MacDonald of Kingsburg.   
 
**One must remember that a lot of people in Nova Scotia thought of the eastern sea coast of the United States as 
one giant Florida and then Miles was in Florida prior to Nova Scotia may be the source of this statement.  Flora 
married Alan of Kingsburg Nov.6, 1750, did Bayer mean that his great grand parents married after that date?** 
 
Captain Angus MacDonald married Catherine MacLeod, the daughter of the  Rev. Donald MacLeod III of 
Greshornish (1698-1759), Skye and Ann MacLean, the  daughter of the Rev.John Maclean the second son of John 
MacLean, 8th of  Boreray.  The Rev. Donald MacLeod III of Greshornish served as a missionary to the Island of 
Benbecula, in 1736 to North Uist and 1754 to Duirinish on Skye. He spent most of his ministry in the Outer 
Hebrides. 
 
Captain Angus MacDonald and Catherine MacLeod had several children; 
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1. Donald, born in North Uist (c.1750), was alive in 1795 and living in North Uist at that time.   
2. Angus, born in North Uist, married Margaret Buchanan. He died in the Battle of Moore's Creek Bridge or shortly 
thereafter of  wounds. 
3. Alexander, born in North Uist, died in Nova Scotia. 
4. Mary, born about 1767 on the Isle of Skye, married Archibald Crawford of Nova Scotia.4 
5. CHRISTIANIA "Christy" born about 1769 on the Isle of Skye, married MILES  MacINNES of Skye, North 
Carolina and Nova Scotia. (Bayer said he remembered hearing  that the first time Captain Miles MacInnes saw his 
wife was when he and some other  officers were on a trip to MacNabb's Island and unexpectedly came upon the 
three  MacDonald girls bathing.) 
6. Alexanderina "Lexy" married Jacob Bayer, Nova Scotia. 
7. Catherine born ca. 1773, married Alexander MacDougal, Nova Scotia. 
 
After the marriage of Christy to Miles MacInnes, Captain Angus MacDonald moved to Meagher's Grant. The old 
cellar of his house could be seen in 1910.  Each of the MacDonald girls received two slaves.  Tom Wade of Windsor 
Junction is a son of one of the girls given to Christy MacInnes, Black Charlotte.  The other one also named 
Charlotte, married a former southern slave named Dennis McGruda. 
 
Charlotte lived in a small log cabin on the MacInnes' farm, and one night when Dennis came a courting, the 
MacInnes boys crept up to the shanty to listen.  Dennis first knelt down and said a long prayer after which he 
managed to pop the momentous question, and in a very short time Mr. MacInnes, who was a Justice of the Peace, 
had to perform the marriage ceremony for the happy couple. 
 
Dennis McGruda got to Nova Scotia by guiding the British to a Yankee stronghold in the war of 1812.  The British 
found him at work for his master and compelled him to show them where the enemy was by promising him his 
freedom.  They were good as their word, and that's how Dennis McGruda got to Nova Scotia. 
 
Captain Angus MacDonald received half pay of Captain till 1813. 
 
***From Moore County Court Minutes of February 22, 1785: 
"Thomas Matthews came into court and on oath returned the following articles of the estate of Angus MacDonald 
liable for confiscation to wit: 200 acres of land, 9 pounds and 15 shillings, one surveyors chain, 2 head of cattle and 
one horse in the hands of Thomas Collins." 
 
**** Moore County Court Minutes of August 21, 1792: 
"A Letter of Attorney from Anguish McDaniel to Ferquard Campbell was duly proved before Samuel Ashe, Esq. 
one of the judges of the Superior Court and Ordered to be registered." 
 
It would therefore appear that Captain Angus MacDonald, then in Nova Scotia, had some hopes of recovering at 
least a part of his property. The foregoing claim is quite different in form from those filed by others of the 
Highlanders.  Whereas other claims are submitted with certificates from officers who were captured at Moore's 

 
4 That Mary was married to Archibald Crawford came from Flo Dickey’s notes, perhaps from the 1901 article by J. 
D. Bayer she referred to, but this is from Jennie Reid’s Musquodoboit Pioneers,  Early Settlers in Meagher’s Grant, 
A.B.Lay  1922.  (updated to 1980). “Meagher’s Grant was a grand of land comprising about 9000 acres, made to 
"Bachelor Meagher", a Major in the British Army in 1765, for purposes of colonization.  Roland McDonald, one of 
the first settlers came here from the United States in 1777. He was one of the many Loyalists who settled in Nova 
Scotia about that time.  He was born in the Isle of Skye and lived on the place now owned by Robert Misiner, 
1980.  Henry Crawford was a great grandson.  Archibald Crawford md. Mary McDonald, dau. of Ronald 
McDonald.” 
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Creek, Capt. MacDonald produced only two, one from Dr. Morrison; the other from Donald Shaw, (Dr. Morrison's 
son in law) and these only mildly certified to his loyalty and scarcely at all to his property.  The entire claim is 
confused and one can hardly tell just how much property he lost.  The 400 acre tract referred to was sold to him by 
Alexander MacDonald of Mt. Pleasant, North Carolina, and the deed is recorded in Fayetteville.  The other deeds 
referred to as having been left "in the office" are not of record.  The 400 acres mentioned lay on, and is believed to 
include the mouth of Little Crane's Creek where it enters Big Crane's Creek, just below the railroad between 
Cameron and Vass.  The mill mentioned was originally built by Thomas Gilmore, and at one time known as the 
Keith, Muckle and Stokes's Mill.  In the early days of the Raleigh and Agusta Air Line, this place was a flag-stop, 
and was known as Walnut Grove.  A few of these trees still grow in the vicinity. 
 
Ca 1750 Angus  (VIII) married Catherine MacLeod, daughter of Rev. Donald MacLeod III (1698-27 Dec 1759) 
& Ann MacLean (-25 Dec 1774), in Isle Of Skye. Born in 1731 in Isle Of Skye, Scotland. Catherine died in 
Meaghers Grant, NS, in 1813; she was 82. 
 
Catherine's grandfather was the Rev. John MacLean, the second son John MacLean, VIII of Boreray and Mary 
MacDonald of Morar, who was the daughter of Alexander MacDonald, 6th of Morar and Anne MacDonald of Sleat.  
Her other set of grandparents were Alexander MacLeod III of Greshornish, Skye the son of Norman MacLeod, 2nd 
of Greshornish and Catherine MacLean of Coll. 
 
They had the following children: 
  i. Donald. Born ca 1750 in North Uist, Scotland. Donald died in North Uist, aft 1795; he 

was 45. 
  ii. Angus. Born in North Uist. Angus died in Battle Of Moore's Creek Bridge. 
  iii. Alexander. Born in North Uist, Scotland. Alexander died in Nova Scotia. 
  iv. Mary. Born in 1767 in Isle Of Skye. Mary died in Nova Scotia. 
 
   Mary married Archibald Crawford. 
 
   That Mary was married to Archibald Crawford came from Flo Dickey’s notes, perhaps 

from the 1901 article by J. D. Bayer she referred to, but this is from Jennie Reid’s 
Musquodoboit Pioneers,  Early Settlers in Meagher’s Grant, A.B.Lay  1922.  (updated to 
1980). “Meagher’s Grant was a grant of land comprising about 9000 acres, made to 
"Bachelor Meagher", a Major in the British Army in 1765, for purposes of 
colonization.  Roland McDonald, one of the first settlers came here from the United 
States in 1777. He was one of the many Loyalists who settled in Nova Scotia about that 
time.  He was born in the Isle of Skye and lived on the place now owned by Robert 
Misiner, 1980.  Henry Crawford was a great grandson.  Archibald Crawford md. Mary 
McDonald, dau. of Ronald McDonald.” 

 
  v. Christiana (1769-1853), married to Miles MacInnes. 
 
  vi. Alexandrina ("Lexy"). Born in 1770. Alexandrina ("Lexy") married Jacob Bayer, son 

of Hans Georg Bayer5 (1727-3 Feb 1802) & Eva Cathrine Rouche (1733-22 Mar 1811). 

 
5 How Bayers Road Got Its Name, Fairview Historical Society, Submitted by Devonna Edwards, Jan. 27, 
2021. 
 
In the Halifax City Directory 1912 to around 1934 it stated that Bayers Road commenced at Oxford Street and ran 
west to Dutch Village Road. From 1934 onward, it stated that Bayers Road commenced at Windsor Street and ran 
west to Dutch Village Road. Today Bayers Road still commences at Windsor Street and rans west to Joseph Howe 
Drive, formerly called Dutch Village Road. Bayers Road was called after a German settler who had the last name of 
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Born in 1767. Jacob died in 1830; he was 63. They had the following children: 
a. Ranald Bayers (1797-). Ranald married Ann/Nancy MacInnes (2), daughter of 

Miles MacInnes (ca 1754-1818) & Christiana MacDonald (1769-1853). Born on 
24 Dec 1790. 1875 census Hennepin, MN Dickey Bayer 32 b. NS Barbary 28 b. NS 
Anna 9 b. NS Idda 7 b. NS L.M. 0 b. Minn Bayer Anna 84 b. NS (Bayer Dickey 
would be her nephew). 

b. Duncan. Born in 1802. Duncan died in Musquodoboit Harbour, NS, on 18 Nov 
1875; he was 73. On 9 Jan 1828 when Duncan was 26, he married Mary Crawford in 
Musquodoboit, Halifax Co., NS. Born on 28 Sep 1808. Mary died in Musquodoboit 
Harbour, NS, on 10 Nov 1898; she was 90. 

c. James A. Born in 1808 in Bayer Settlement, Musquodoboit Harbour, NS. James A. 
died in Meaghers Grant, Hfx. Co., NS, on 30 Apr 1890; he was 82. On 13 Feb 1834 

 
Bayer and who owned a considerable amount of property in the area. His grandson, Thomas Bayer built a house on 
Bayers Road. Thomas Bayer built his picturesque homestead in 1838 on the north side of Bayers Road, about eight 
hundred feet west of Oxford Street. The east and west wings were later added to the house. Many large trees stood in 
front of the house, which was formally separated from the road by a low stone wall topped by a neat picket fence. 
The house was destroyed by fire November 1939. 
The narrow dirt road that ran in front of his old homestead, taking the early settlers from the Dutch Village to and 
from Halifax, was later known as Bayers Road. Not many motorist who travel this main road are aware of the rich 
history in the area. Today 2021, construction to widen the paved road has recently been completed, allowing the 
busy traffic to flow smoother. The original 94 acre property was granted to Col. Frederick Hamilton but he sold it to 
George Bayer on Feb. 6, 1764 and George later added another 80 acres to his property. George Bayer (Bayers, 
Beyer) emigrated from Rotterdam, Germany on board the Pearl in 1751 and landed in Halifax. He started a bakery 
which became quite successful. He obtained a contract to supply the many ships on station with soft bread and he 
also supplied the troops posted in Halifax at that time. 
The original George Bayers farm was located on the west side of Windsor Road (Windsor Street) on the outskirts of 
the town’s settlement. The original house he lived in was built in 1765 and contained part of an older log cabin built 
by Colonel Hamilton and to which an addition was added to its northeast end. It was located some four hundred 
yards north of the present day Bayers Road at a place called “The Willows” about 493 yards north of Young Street. 
The house burnt down about 1867. 
When George Bayer died, the 176 acre property passed on to his second son, Phillip, who was a trapper and trader in 
furs with the Mi’Kmaq and who lived in the old house at “The Willows.” His only son John, died before his father 
and after Philip’s death about 1838-39, the property was divided into two parts, the original homestead and north 
section going to his elder grandson, John, who married a daughter of the well-known Titus Smith and whose son 
was Rufus Bayer. 
The southern part became the property of his other grandson Thomas, who built the picturesque farmhouse on 
Bayers Road. The Middle Peninsular Blockhouse, one of the town’s forts that was used as a defence against the 
Mi’Kmaq,.was located on the Bayers property near the corner of present day Connaught Ave. and Bayers Road. The 
foundation of the blockhouse was still seen in 1848 in the hollow below Philip Bayers pasture. 
Notes regarding George Bayer: 
George was born in 1727 and died in 1802. He married Eva Catherine Rouche birth unknown, and who died in 
1811. 
Their children were: 
1. George Bayer, born 1755 and died in 1829 in Petpeswick, Halifax County. He married Elizabeth Martin. 
2. Catherine Bayer, died unknown. 
3. Eustina Bayer, died unknown. She married Duncan Clarke. 
4. Jacob Bayer, died unknown. He married Elizabeth Simonds (and 2nd Alexandrina MacDonald). 
5. Philip Bayers, born about 1758 and died 1833. He married Mary Stayner. 
6. John Bayer, born 1761 and died 1840. He married Sarah Webber. 
7. William Bayer, born after 1761 and died 1810. He married Elizabeth Cochran. 
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when James A. was 26, he married Isabel Shaw, daughter of Alexander Shaw (1 
Dec 1774-9 Jan 1867) & Isabel Mason (20 May 1785-), in Meaghers Grant, Hfx. 
Co., NS. Born on 16 Aug 1809. Isabel died in Meaghers Grant, Hfx. Co., NS, on 16 
Jul 1882; she was 72. James A. was the father of James Duncan (J.D.) Bayer, who 
apparently wrote a history of the Bayer/MacDonald families in 1901. 

d. Edmund Harris. Born on 15 May 1814 in Musquodoboit Harbour, NS. Edmund 
Harris died in Dartmouth, N.S., on 2 Mar 1872; he was 57. On 30 Jun 1843 when 
Edmund Harris was 29, he married Abigail Doggett Verge in Porters Lake, NS. 
Born on 12 Sep 1822 in Porters Lake, NS. Abigail Doggett died in Dartmouth, N.S., 
on 3 Apr 1871; she was 48. 

e. Miles. Born on 31 Oct 1819. Miles died in Greene, Tennessee, on 13 Apr 1904; he 
was 84. Buried in Rheatown, Greene, Tennessee. On 11 Apr 1869 when Miles was 
49, he first married Sarah Osborn in Hennepin Co., MN. Born on 11 May 1824 in 
Guilford, North Carolina. Sarah died in Greene, Tennessee, on 4 Mar 1885; she was 
60. On 11 Aug 1886 when Miles was 66, he second married Mary Robertson in 
Greene, Tennessee. Born in 1843 in Greene, Tennessee. Mary died in Greene, 
Tennessee, on 22 Jun 1922; she was 79. 

  vii. Catherine (ca 1773-). Born ca 1773. Buried in Pioneer Cemetery, Middle Musquodoboit, 
NS. 

 
   In 1789 when Catherine was 16, she married Alexander MacDougal, son of John 

MacDougal. Born in 1765. Alexander died on 30 Aug 1834; he was 69. Buried in Pioneer 
Cemetery, Middle Musquodoboit, NS. 

 
   Alexander MacDougall, b. Scotland 1765, received two grants, one at Meaghers Grant 

and one at Little River (Elderbank). He brought his parents to live on the second grant. 
Alexander had two brothers, whom may have gone to Ontario, and sisters Catherine, m. 
to John Dunbrack, Sarah, m. to Mr. McIntosh, Mr. Bacon, and John Dunbrack after the 
death of Catherine, and Margaret, m. to Christopher Dillman. Alexander m. Catherine 
MacDonald of Kennetcook, and had children John, m. to Nancy MacInnes, Alexander, m. 
to Hannah Dickey and Phoebe Hamilton, Daniel (1794-1802), Elizabeth, m. Hon. Wm. 
McKeen, Isabel, Hugh Alexander, Catherine, m. David Dickey, Dougall, m. Mary Parker, 
Janet. m. Benjamin Smith, William, Nancy, m. David Fisher, and Grace, m. James Bruce. 
This information from Flo Dickey, Tucson, AZ. 
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